CIL Spending Panel
Task Group
Agenda

Thursday, 22nd July, 2021
at 11.00 am
in the

Assembly Room
Town Hall
King’s Lynn
Also available to view on WestNorfolkBC on You Tube

King’s Court, Chapel Street, King’s Lynn, Norfolk, PE30 1EX
Telephone: 01553 616200

15 July 2021

Dear Member
CIL Spending Panel Task Group
You are invited to attend a meeting of the above-mentioned Task Group which will
be held on Thursday, 22nd July, 2021 at 11.00 am in the Assembly Room, Town
Hall, Saturday Market Place, King's Lynn PE30 5DQ to discuss the business
shown below.
Yours sincerely
Chief Executive
AGENDA

1.

Apologies for absence

2.

Declarations of interest
Please indicate if there are any interests which should be declared. A
declaration of an interest should indicate the nature of the interest (if not
already declared on the Register of Interests) and the agenda item to which it
relates. If a disclosable pecuniary interest is declared, the Members should
withdraw from the room whilst the matter is discussed.
These declarations apply to all Members present, whether the Member is part
of the meeting, attending to speak as a local Member on an item or simply
observing the meeting.

3.

Urgent Business
To consider any business which, by reason of special circumstances, the
Chairman proposes to accept as urgent under Section 100b(4)(b) of the Local
Government Act, 1972.

4.

Members present pursuant to Standing Order 34
Members wishing to speak pursuant to Standing Order 34 should inform the
Chair of their intention to do so and on what items they wish to be heard
before a decision on that item is taken.

5.

Chair's correspondence (if any)

6.

CIL Spending Panel Report - Applications and officer recommendations
(Pages 5 - 149)

7.

Date of next meeting
To be agreed.

To:
CIL Spending Panel Task Group: R Blunt, F Bone, C Bower, M de Whalley,
E Nockolds and T Parish

Officers
Amanda Driver, CIL Monitoring Officer
Alan Gomm, LDF Manager

Agenda Item 6

CIL Spending Panel – introductory comments for meeting
of 22 July 2021
Note from the Planning Policy Manager
1

Background
1.1 The Borough Council of King's Lynn and West Norfolk approved the
introduction of the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) in December 2016
and started charging on 15 February 2017. The Levy is paid to the Borough
Council by developers after their planning permissions are implemented. It is
governed by the CIL Regulations 2010 (amended). In the Borough of King's
Lynn and West Norfolk, CIL is charged on all residential and retail
developments, which add one or more new dwelling(s) or more than 100sqm
of floor space. It is charged at a rate per square metre and varies according
to land use. CIL is just one funding stream that can be used, in conjunction
with others, to fund infrastructure projects. Alongside CIL, S106 obligations
will still exist, but generally as one-off agreements to mitigate the impacts of
larger developments and to secure on-site developer requirements, such as
the provision of affordable housing.

1.2 As a Charging Authority the Council has an obligation to: (my emphasis in
italic / bold)
 Prepare and publish the CIL Charging Schedule
 Determine CIL spend, ensuring it is used to fund the provision,
improvement, replacement, operation; or maintenance of
infrastructure to support development of its area
 Report publicly on the amount of CIL revenue collected, spent and
retained each year.
1.3 The Borough Council is required, in the CIL Regulations, to identify the types
of infrastructure it wishes to fund in whole or in part by CIL monies. These are
outlined in the Council's Annual List of Infrastructure Projects. CIL money
collected can only be allocated to and spent on these types of infrastructure.
2. Agreeing the spending and accountability – the Governance framework
2.1 The accompanying schedule of applications / introduction also gives a
diagrammatic representation of the application and approval processes as previously
agreed by Cabinet.
2.2 The main points in summary are:
 Local Projects have consideration by the CIL Spending Panel and sign off
by a Service Manager.
 Community projects are again recommended by officers, but with scrutiny
by the CIL Spending Panel before sign off by Management Team.

5




Strategic projects are scrutinised and agreed by Cabinet with
recommendations from officers and comment from the Spending Panel Management Team reviews these recommendations
The processes are intended to maximise involvement of elected Members,
but allows for officers to co-ordinate applications and achieve a Corporate
focus (This would include reference to spending from other sources
considered regularly by Management Team).

2.3 The CIL Spending Panel therefore has a key role in the process and applications
from the first round of requests for grants are now presented for consideration /
onward recommendations. The terms of reference for the Panel are attached as an
Appendix for information.

Alan Gomm
Planning Policy Manager
July 2021

APPENDIX 1
CIL Spending Panel – Terms of Reference
Overview
The CIL Spending Panel provides an elected Member oversight of the Community
Infrastructure Levy spending on infrastructure across the Borough having reference
to the adopted ‘CIL Spending and Governance Process’ document. It also considers
and agrees certain types of projects and recommends action on others.
Tasks
1. To keep under review the ‘CIL Spending and Governance Process’ document
and make recommendations for change to Cabinet.
2. To receive recommendations from Officers and approve or reject these in
respect of ‘Local Projects’ under the scheme.
3. To receive recommendations from Officers on ‘Community Projects’, review
these and recommend approval or rejection to Management Team.
4. To receive recommendations from Officers on ‘Strategic Projects’, review
these and make comments to Cabinet via Management Team.
5. To seek to ensure coordination of information on applications and comments
on these across Portfolio Holders and other Borough Council bodies.
6. To receive monitoring reports from Officers on the operation of CIL, including
necessary statutory reporting (Annual Infrastructure Funding Statement; Parish
Annual Spending Reports).
7. To consider and make recommendations to Cabinet as appropriate on the
implementation, spending and monitoring of CIL.

6

Community Infrastructure Levy
CIL) Infrastructure Fund
Application for Funding FY 20/21
Report & Scoring
This report will form part of the Annual Infrastructure Statement for
FY21/22.

Prepared by BC Officer: Amanda Driver (CIL Officer)
Date BC Officer Scoring Completed
Revision Details

Report Dated 07 July 2021
24 June 2021
Date Revised

7

Contents
Introduction ........................................................................................................................... 4
Statutory Requirements ..................................................................................................................................... 4
Annual List of Infrastructure Projects FY2020-2021 .......................................................................................... 5
Funding Applications ......................................................................................................................................... 5
Blank submissions............................................................................................................................................. 6
Governance Arrangements ............................................................................................................................... 6
What can CIL be spent on. ................................................................................................................................ 8
Decision Making Process .................................................................................................................................. 9
Monitoring and Review .................................................................................................................................... 10

Local Projects ...................................................................................................................... 11
Local Project Reports & Scoring – FY 20/21 ................................................................................................... 11
Ref: 05 Northwold Play Repairs ............................................................................................................... 12
Ref: 06 Barton Bendish Village Hall Fit-out project ................................................................................... 14
Ref 07 South Wootton - Nursery Close/Common Lane Footpath ............................................................. 16
Ref 08 Denver - Playing Field Car Park Improvements ............................................................................ 18
Ref 09 Emneth - Childrens play area repairs ............................................................................................ 21
Ref 10 Hunstanton - Community Centre Youth Shelter ............................................................................ 23
Ref 11 Hunstanton - Community Centre 'Body Balance Trim & Trail' ....................................................... 24
Ref 12 East Rudham - Restructure of Playpark ........................................................................................ 25
Ref 13 North Runcton - Flood Alleviation Work ...................................................................................... 26
Ref 14 Upwell Hall - Renovation Preparation ........................................................................................... 29
Ref 15 Walsoken - Chapnall Road bus shelter replacement ..................................................................... 31
Ref 16 Sedgeford - Playing Field Outdoor Gym Project............................................................................ 33
Ref 18 Gaywood - GCC Outdoor Gym ..................................................................................................... 34
Ref 19 Ringstead - Reroof Village Hall ..................................................................................................... 35
Ref 20 Snettisham – Beach Road TROD - 21/22 stage ............................................................................ 37
Ref 21 North Wootton Park - All Weather Parking .................................................................................... 38
Ref 22 Thornham - Gazebo for children and young adults play and sports area ...................................... 40
Ref 24 Walpole - Playground Project........................................................................................................ 41
Ref 26 Downham Market Town - Council Market Starter Kits ................................................................... 42
Ref 29 Feltwell - ResurfaceTennis Court .................................................................................................. 44
Ref 30 Feltwell - Replace Fencing Around Tennis Court .......................................................................... 46
Ref 33 Burnham Norton - Parish Sandpit ................................................................................................. 47
Ref 34 Grimston - Green Light _ LED Light Replacement ........................................................................ 50
Ref 36 West Winch - Extension and Upgrade to Existing Changing Rooms. ............................................ 51
Ref 39 Holme next the Sea - Beach Road ditches.................................................................................... 56
Ref 42 North Wootton - Conversion to LED Street Lighting ...................................................................... 59
Ref 44 Dersingham - Lamp column replacement...................................................................................... 61
Ref 46 Burnham Thorpe - Project HMS Victory Play Equipment .............................................................. 62
Ref 47 Docking - Appearance of 3 parish ponds ...................................................................................... 64
Ref 48 Docking - Pound/Cage Restoration ............................................................................................... 65
Ref 49 Castle Acre - Improved play area safety fencing ........................................................................... 66
Ref 51 Great Massingham – Ducklings Pre-School Building Renovation Their Future, Our Future .......... 68
Ref 53 Additions and improvements to Walpole Highway play area ......................................................... 72
Ref 54 Stoke Ferry - The Blue Bell Hub…the creation of an inclusive local community ............................ 73
Ref 57 Heacham - Open Air Skatepark .................................................................................................... 80
Ref 58 Downham Market - High Street Lighting and Bunting .................................................................... 81
Ref 59 Downham Market Info Signs ......................................................................................................... 83
Ref 60 Gayton - Study of the stormwater and foul drainage systems in Gayton & Gayton........................ 85
Ref 61 King’s Lynn - TS Vancouver Structural Improvements .................................................................. 91
Ref 62 Gayton - Install French drain beside Skate Park ........................................................................... 93
Ref 63 Gayton - Grimston Road Trod ....................................................................................................... 94

8

Ref 66 Pentney - Narborough Road Culvert (Grid Ref. TF73501375)....................................................... 95
Ref 67 Watlington - Warren Close Play Area Slide ................................................................................... 96
Ref 68 Old Hunstanton - Better Parking Scheme ..................................................................................... 99
Ref 69 Pott Row - Holly Meadows Cycle Track ...................................................................................... 101
Ref 70 Ingoldisthorpe - The Old Post Office Hub (TOPOH) .................................................................... 103
Ref 71 - Lynnsport - Group Cycling Studio Development ....................................................................... 106
Ref 72 Clenchwarton Play Area Renovation........................................................................................... 107

Community Projects.......................................................................................................... 109
Community Project Reports & Scoring – FY 20/21........................................................................................ 109
Ref 31 Lynnsport - Alive Wellness Hub .................................................................................................. 111
Ref 38 Burnham Overy Village Hall – New Windows .............................................................................. 113
Ref 40 Heacham Toilets ......................................................................................................................... 115
Ref 45 Barroway Drove - Foot Path Extension ....................................................................................... 117
Ref 52 Upwell Hall Environmental Transformation ................................................................................. 119
Ref 55 West Winch Skatepark................................................................................................................ 123
Ref 56 Tilney All Saints - Millennium Green Play Area ........................................................................... 132
, Ref 64 – Clenchwarton Pre-School - Project Panda .............................................................................. 135

Strategic Projects .............................................................................................................. 139
Strategic Project Application Criteria – FY 20/21........................................................................................... 139
Ref 32 New Lynnsport 3G and Coaching Academy................................................................................ 140

9

Introduction
The Borough Council of King's Lynn and West Norfolk approved the introduction of the Community Infrastructure
Levy (CIL) in December 2016 and started charging on 15 February 2017.
CIL is paid to the Borough Council by developers after their planning permissions are implemented.
CIL is governed by the CIL Regulations 2010 (amended). In the Borough of King's Lynn and West Norfolk, CIL is
charged on all residential and retail developments, which add one or more new dwelling(s) or more than 100sqm
of floor space.
CIL is charged at a rate per square metre and varies according to land use.
CIL is just one funding stream that can be used, in conjunction with others, to fund infrastructure projects. Alongside
CIL, S106 obligations will still exist, but generally as one-off agreements to mitigate the impacts of larger
developments and to secure on-site developer requirements, such as the provision of affordable housing. Examples
of how infrastructure projects can be funded can be seen in Figure 1.

Statutory Requirements
Under CIL, the Borough Council will act as the designated Charging Authority.
As a Charging Authority the Council has an obligation to:
x Determine CIL spend, ensuring it is used to fund the provision, improvement, replacement, operation or
maintenance of infrastructure to support development of its area
x Report publicly on the amount of CIL revenue collected, spent and retained each year.
The Borough Council is required, in the CIL Regulations, to identify the types of infrastructure it wishes to fund in
whole or in part by CIL monies. These are outlined in the Council's Annual List of Infrastructure Projects.
CIL money collected can only be allocated to and spent on these types of infrastructure.
The Borough Council's Annual List of Infrastructure Projects and Annual Infrastructure Funding Statement, detailing
CIL receipts, balances and expenditure for each financial year can be found on the Council's website at
https://www.west-norfolk.gov.uk/CIL

10

Annual List of Infrastructure Projects FY2020-2021
Following the deletion of CIL Regulation 123 in September 2019, each Collection Authority must produce an Annual
Infrastructure Funding Statement.
The infrastructure funding statement will be produced and published no later than the 31 December annually and will
provide details of CIL receipts, expenditure, allocations and payments.
To support the Annual Infrastructure Statement, the Borough Council of King’s Lynn and West Norfolk have
produced a list of criteria for which CIL may be used for FY20/21. The current list of criteria for each project type is:
Strategic Projects over £50,000
• Education related to 18+ employment – post college based education
• Transport – linked to the Lynn Transport Plan
• Environment – green areas linked to the BCKLWN Climate Change Policy
Community Projects between £10,000 and £50,000
• Education – local initiatives
• Health
• Economic Development
Local Projects between £1,000 and £10,000
• Community Facilities
• Green Infrastructure
• Open Space and Leisure
• Community Transport
This list will be continually reviewed, to meet the changing needs and aspirations of the Borough to support future
infrastructure.

Funding Applications
The was a total of 72 applications received, as part of this process::
•
•
•
•
•

48 Local Project Applications
8 Community Project Applications
1 Strategic Project Application
14 Blank Submissions
1 Duplicate Submission

The total number of applications which will be reviewed as part of the decision making process
will be 57.
Application submissions were made on standard online templates, issued by the Borough
Council:
All of the application forms requested key information about the project, including:
Description and details of the project
Purpose of the project and its benefit to the community
Financial details:
Estimated total cost of project
Amount of CIL funding requested
Details of any match funding
Any other supporting information e.g. Project Report and Timescales
The information received has been summarised within this document, which includes additional information
submitted with the application.

11

In order for a project to be considered for CIL funding, the following eligibility criteria needs to be met:
The Application Form has been completed satisfactorily
The organisation has the legal right to carry out the proposed project
The project is clearly defined as 'Infrastructure' as per the CIL Regulations
Applications should not include a schedule of ongoing costs, to maintain the project, once it has been
completed.

Blank submissions
As an online application process was used, where an applicant has started, the system autogenerates a
unique number for each record.
The unique number remains in the system, even when a record is not submitted. The blank
submissions may have occurred where an application is started and not completed.
There were a number of no-submissions as part of this process, as detailed below:
Notes
Ref No
Project Type
1 to 4 Test Submissions
17
Local
No Submission
23
Blank
No Submission
25
Blank
No Submission
27
Blank
No Submission
28
Blank
No Submission
35
Blank
No Submission
37
Blank
No Submission
41
Blank
No Submission
43
Blank
No Submission
50
Blank
No Submission
65
Local
Duplicate submission of Ref No 67

Governance Arrangements
The CIL Governance Document provides details the governance arrangements in place at the Borough
Council of King's Lynn and West Norfolk, for the allocation and spending of CIL.
The original parameters for the governance arrangements of CIL were agreed at Cabinet on 17 August 2020.
The governance arrangements will be reviewed on an annual basis, to meet the Corporate Objectives and
Priorities, by Cabinet on an annual basis.
The CIL Infrastructure Fund has been separated into 3 specific project types, to enable the funding to meet
wider borough infrastructure requirements and also to support local community needs:

60% Strategic Infrastructure Projects
These are projects which require the most amount of CIL funding
The strategic projects will be in excess of £50,000 and be fully match funded longer term projects
The current list of Strategic Projects eligible for funding are:
x
x

Education - related to 18+ employment - college based education
Transport - linked to the Lynn Transport Plan

12

x

Environment - green areas linked to the Council's Climate Change Policy

The Strategic Projects are in line with the Borough Councils Corporate Business Plan. The Project Criteria meet the
Corporate priorities and objectives:
x
x
x

Education - Improving social mobility and inclusion to work with partners to improve education
attainment levels and the skills of local people.
Transport - Delivering growth in the economy and with local housing to promote, lobby and support
infrastructure improvements across the district.
Environment - Protecting and enhancing the environment including tackling climate change to
work with partners and the community to improve our natural environment and creating and
maintaining good quality places that make a positive difference to people’s lives to maintain
accessible, clean, pleasant and safe public places and communities

20% Community Projects
These are projects which will meet the needs of Parishes and Wards, to fund community projects between
£10,000 and £50,000
It is expected that there will be an element of match funding for these projects. Mid term projects
The current list of Community Projects eligible for funding are:
x
x
x

Education -- Local Initiatives
Health
Economic Development

The Community Projects are in line with the Borough Councils Corporate Business Plan. The Project Criteria meet
the Corporate priorities and objectives:
x
x
x

Education - Improving social mobility and inclusion to work with partners to improve education
attainment levels and the skills of local people.
Health - Improving social mobility and inclusion by continuing to assist our residents to maximise their
opportunities by accessing the support and services they are entitled to.
Economic Development - Delivering growth in the economy and with local housing to promote the
borough as a vibrant place in which to live, to do business and as a leading visitor and cultural
destination.

20% Local Projects
These allocations will be used to meet the local infrastructure requirements for smaller more local projects up to
£10,000

The current list of Local Projects eligible for funding are:
x
x
x
x

Community Facilities
Green Infrastructure
Open Space and Leisure
Community Transport

The Local Projects are in line with the Borough Councils Corporate Business Plan. The Project Criteria

13

meet the Corporate priorities and objectives:
x
x
x
x

Community Facilities - Creating and maintaining good quality places that make a positive
difference to people’s lives to maintain accessible, clean, pleasant and safe public places and
communities.
Green Infrastructure - Helping to improve the health and well being of our communities by
supporting our local communities to be healthy and more active
Open Space and Leisure - Creating and maintaining good quality places that make a positive
difference to people’s lives to maintain accessible, clean, pleasant and safe public places and
communities and help to improve the health and well being of our communities
Community Transport - Creating and maintaining good quality places that make a positive
difference to people’s lives and helping to improve the health and well being of our communities
by providing early help and support to communities and individuals who are vulnerable.

It is expected that there will be an element of match funding for these projects Short term projects which
must be completed within 5 years
If funding is not fully allocated to Local or Community Projects, on an annual basis, the remaining CIL
will be allocated to the Strategic Projects.

What can CIL be spent on.
CIL Regulations set the context for the spending of CIL funds on infrastructure. The regulations
encourage the accumulation of CIL funds into a 'pot'.
Unlike other obligations or charges, CIL spending does not need to be directly related to the donor development
and can address infrastructure needs in general across the Borough Council's administrative area.
The key points set out by the CIL Regulations and Guidance relating to CIL
funding are:
CIL should be spent on infrastructure including; roads and other transport, schools and
other education, community facilities, health, sport / recreation and open spaces
The infrastructure funded must support the development of the area
CIL can be used to increase the capacity of existing infrastructure or to repair failing
infrastructure, if needed to support development
CIL and Section 106 should not be secured to fund the same infrastructure project e.g.
Social/Affordable Housing

14

Decision Making Process
The adopted CIL Governance Document provides details of the decision making process, for each of the project
types. The table below outlines the individual processes for each project type.

Once the funding decision has been made successful applicants of CIL funding will be expected to maintain
communication with the Borough Council, on the progress of their project, after a decision has been made to

15

provide funding.
Where funding has been agreed 'in principle' or where staged payments are agreed, the scheme applicant
will be expected to provide information to justify funding being transferred.
Applicants should continue to provide information until the scheme has been completed and all CIL funding has
been spent.
At a minimum, an annual report will need to provide information on the progress of each scheme that funding has
been allocated to. A requirement to submit this information forms part of the agreement that the successful
applicant is required to sign between themselves and the Borough Council of King's Lynn and West Norfolk.
If an applicant does not spend CIL money within five years of receipt or does not spend it as agreed then the
Borough Council may require the applicant to repay some or all of those funds.

Monitoring and Review
The Borough Council of King's Lynn and West Norfolk is committed to ensuring the use of CIL is open
and transparent.
List of CIL Funded Projects
The Borough Council will publish a list of all projects that have been allocated CIL funding on our website.
Annual Infrastructure Funding Statement
In line with the CIL Regulations, as amended in September 2019, the Borough Council will publish an
Annual Infrastructure Funding Statement.
This report will provide details of CIL and also S106:
receipts
balances
expenditure
allocations.
will be published on our website annually, for each financial year, no later than 31December.
The published reports can be found on the CIL Financial Reports webpages
at:https://www.west- norfolk.gov.uk/homepage/276/cil_financial_reports

16

Local Projects
Local Project Reports & Scoring – FY 20/21
Scoring Criteria
As detailed in the CIL Governance Document FY20/21, the project must meet the following criteria:
x

Is the total cost of the project between 1k and 10k?

x

Has match funding and financial commitment been secured?

x

Is the project deliverable within 1-5 years?

Current Scope for funding:
x
x
x
x

Community Facilities
Community Transport
Green Infrastructure or
Leisure and Open Space

Scoring Overview:
Amount of CIL funding requested (up to £10k)
Amount of funding committed to the
project by applying organization own funding (e.g.
Parish precept).

1 – 5% = 1 Point
5 – 10% = 2 Points
11 – 15% = 3 Points
16 – 20% = 4 Points
21+% = 5 Points

Out of 5

Parish/Wards - Amount of funding committed to the
project by applying Parish CIL funds

No CIL = 1 Point
10 – 25% = 1 Point
25 – 45% = 2 Points
45 – 65% = 3 Points
65 – 85% = 4 Points
85 – 100% = 5 Points
1 – 5% = 1 Point
5 – 10% = 2 Points
11 – 15% = 3 Points
16 – 20% = 4 Points
21+% = 5 Points

Out of 5

Details of other match funding secured
(amount and organisation providing funds)

17

Out of 5

Ref: 05 Northwold Play Repairs
Applicant

Description

Northwold & Whittington PC

To carry out repairs to the Slide, swing and climbing frame
This is a well used play ground and it is imperative that these repairs are carried out so
that the children can continue to use the equipment. I have uploaded the quotes for the
swing repair and slide repair along with a letter of support from Cllr Ryves and copy of
letter confirming money received from CIL in November which we will use towards these
repairs
Supporting Information Submitted: Slide Repair Quote

Amount of CIL funding requested: £641.77
Scoring Criteria
Amount of funding committed to the project by applying
organization own funding

% Matched/Notes
0

Parish/Wards - Amount of funding committed to the project £799.20 – 124%
by applying Parish CIL funds
Details of other match funding secured

Total Score:
Made by:CIL Officer_ Amanda Driver

Recommendation:

Approval

Reason for Recommendation:

Community Facility/Open Space Infrastructure

CIL Spending Panel Decision
Reason for Refusal (if applicable):

Service Manager/Exec Director Sign off
Signature:

5

0

BC Officer Recommendation

Decision Approved/Refused:

Score
0

Date:

18

5/15
Dated: 25 May 2020

19

Ref: 06 Barton Bendish Village Hall Fit-out project
Applicant

Description

Barton Bendish Village Hall Trust
Following a major refurbishment and extension to the village hall, the trustees now wish
to complete the fit-out of the premises and install modern facilities as outlined below:
1. Broadband and wi-fi connectivity. As the Covid-19 pandemic has shown, connectivity
is vitally important and even more so in isolated rural communities such as ours. We
want to install a full broadband and wi-fi connection to facilitate IT training and to
improve the facilities in general so as to increase the viability of this community asset.
2. Kitchen equipment. The new kitchen still needs a new fridge/freezer and a hot
cupboard so as to increase the catering opportunities and thereby increase the number
and type of events that we can offer in pursuit of our charitable aims.
3. Chairs. The increased capacity of the hall triggers a requirement for more furniture. In
particular we have a need for new chairs.
Barton Bendish is a rurally isolated community within the lowest 50% of economic
deprivation. BBVHT is working to address issues of rural isolation, including social and
cultural isolation, and loneliness. We do this through a programme of social and
educational events in our village hall which also serves to facilitate and provide a
meeting place for other local community groups. The hall is well used and has recently
undergone a major refurbishment and extension which will enable us to increase the
type and number of events we have planned. We now have a need to complete the fit
out of the hall alongside an upgrade of the facilities we can offer so as to increase the
use and reach of the hall.
Barton Bendish Village Hall Trust is a registered charity 803776. The Village hall is the
only community facility within the parish, following the recent closure of The Berney
Arms PH., and as such acts as the social and cultural centre of the settlement.
The project costs are made up as follows:
Broadband and wi-fi – Costs £40 pcm for £1,440
Kitchen Equipment - £1000
Chairs – 100 chairs at £40.00 each = £4000
Please note that whilst the Parish Council support this project, they do not have any CIL
funds to distribute, because there has been no appropriate development.

Amount of CIL funding requested: £5,440
Scoring Criteria
Amount of funding committed to the project by applying
organization own funding

% Matched/Notes
£1000 – 15%

Score
3

Parish/Wards - Amount of funding committed to the project
by applying Parish CIL funds

0

1

Details of other match funding secured
Total Score:
BC Officer Recommendation

Made by:CIL Officer_ Amanda Driver

Recommendation:

Partial Approval of £4,000

20

4/15
Dated: 25 May 2020

Reason for Recommendation:

CIL is not to be for on costs as detailed in the Governance Document
Page 6, Para 5.0.10 ‘Applications should not include a schedule of
ongoing costs, to maintain the project, once it has been completed.’
Community Facility

CIL Spending Panel Decision
Decision Approved/Refused:

Reason for Refusal (if applicable):

Service Manager/Exec Director Sign off
Signature:

Date:

21

Ref 07 South Wootton - Nursery Close/Common Lane Footpath
Applicant

Description

South Wootton Parish Council

Currently there is not a footpath between Nursery Close and Common Lane, this muddy
area is currently the most used route for residents living in the Avon Road vicinity and all
members of the public coming from the Avon Road cycle path, to access the Village
Green or walk towards Castle Rising Road. The Parish Council would like to install a
new tarmac footpath across this area allowing pedestrians safe access to the local
Village Green and the Castle Rising Road area without needing to walk on, or cross the
busy road, Nursery Lane. This new footpath would beneficial to all, walkers, parents with
pushchairs, disabled.
This project has been brought about by requests from members of the public to provide
this footpath. This is a regularly used route and would make a safer passage for
everyone who walks or cycles to the Village Green or the Castle Rising Road area and
beyond.
Supporting Information Submitted:Common Lane Photo

Amount of CIL funding requested: £843.00
Scoring Criteria
Amount of funding committed to the project by applying
organization own funding

% Matched/Notes
0

Score
0

Parish/Wards - Amount of funding committed to the project £3372.00 – 400%
by applying Parish CIL funds

5

Details of other match funding secured

0
Total Score:

5/15

BC Officer Recommendation

Made by:CIL Officer_ Amanda Driver

Recommendation:

Approval

Reason for Recommendation:

Priority Approval - Open Space Infrastructure to support development

CIL Spending Panel Decision
Decision Approved/Refused:

Reason for Refusal (if applicable):

Service Manager/Exec Director Sign off
Signature:

Date:

22

Dated: 25 May 2020

23

Ref 08 Denver - Playing Field Car Park Improvements
Applicant

Description

Denver Playing Field Association

This project will provide the following on the recreation ground site: Lighting. The car
park lighting will be 4x4 metre posts with LED floodlights and a camera to ensure
appropriate security. The works include the following
• Dig and fill trench
• 150 metre armoured cable
• Labour and Electrician
• Fuse Board
• Enclosure for supply
• 4x200w LED floodlights with PIR
• Camera
Fencing:
To provide and fit pressure treated timber post and rail fencing for the car park to ensure
the car park has a defined boundary and protects the pitches and informal play areas
from being used for parking.
Denver Playing Fields in Denver, Norfolk are run by a Management Committee, Denver
Playing Field Association, which is a registered charity. The Management Committee
consists of local residents, sports clubs, local school and Parish Council. The facility
serves the Parish of Denver, Ryston, Roxham and Fordham and a population of over
2,000. Cricket has been played on the field since 1901.
The following organisations currently use the site:
• Denver Primary School – free use of pitches during daytime
• Denver Cricket Club – 3 adult teams, U13’s, U15’s, 5- 8 years programme, 8 – 11
years programme
• Denver Football Club – Charter Standard Club with Senior Team and 3 junior teams
The Association has through grants, fundraising and work of local volunteers improved
the pavilion, play area and pitches on the site. The next phase of the recreation ground
redevelopment is to improve the car park facilities on site by providing new lighting and
fencing to ensure the facility is safe to use. This is the only local community open,
access recreation facility that serves the local community. It offers facilities and activities
for all ages and abilities.
There is an open access play area for children and grass pitches which are free to use
for informal sports as well as club use for those wishing to develop in their chosen sport.
We provide access to sport and recreation activities and facilities throughout the year.
There are opportunities for all ages and abilities to play football and cricket as well as
the opportunity for local people to gain coaching qualifications and volunteer within the
local sports clubs enabling them to develop their capacity and engage more children
and young people in positive activities.
The new, improved facilities have been welcomed and embraced by the local
community.
The facilities are used 50 weeks of the year for formal sport including cricket, football,
holiday activities, training and coach/volunteer education and the pitches are also open
access so free to use for the local community.
It is estimated that over 5,000 people use the facilities each year for formal and informal
sport and recreation including not only formal sport but playground use and informal
health and fitness
We also host an annual Festival of Sport Day to include other sports including athletics,
rugby and archery.The improved lighting and fencing on the car park are crucial as we
cater for significantly increased demand for our facilities for both formal and informal
recreation. We need to ensure there is safe parking facilities for users.

24

Additional
Information

The recreation ground site covers 12.5 acres and has the following facilities:
• 1 adult grass football pitch
• 1 floodlit grass training pitch
• 1 cricket square
• Play Area
• Car Park
• Pavilion
• 1 cricket net
• 1 mini soccer pitch
• 1 junior football pitch
Denver Football Club is a Charter Standard club with a Senior Men’s team in the North
West Norfolk Saturday League and U7, U9 and U12’s teams
Denver Cricket Club runs two Saturday teams, the 1st XI is in Division 4 of the Norfolk
Cricket Alliance and the 2nd XI are in Division 4 of the Norfolk Cricket League. There is
a Sunday XI that plays friendly fixtures.
The club has a thriving youth section running U13 and U15 teams, each playing
competitive cricket in the West Norfolk Junior League. There is also an All Stars
Programme for 5 – 8 years and a Dynamos programme for 8 – 11 years.
There are also weekly adult and weekly junior nets sessions.
The Committee has extensive experience both professionally and as volunteers of
managing construction projects. This is evidenced by our successful playground and
major pavilion improvements.
It is our intention that one Committee Member will be allocated the Project Manager role
and be responsible for liaising with the contractors to ensure all health and safety
requirements are adhered to along with along with ensuring that the project is kept to
timescale and budget.That person will provide written and verbal reports to the
Committee which will convene as necessary during the works to ensure successful
completion
Supporting Information Submitted:Electricity Quote

Amount of CIL funding requested: £6458
Scoring Criteria
Amount of funding committed to the project by applying
organization own funding

% Matched/Notes
£1000 – 15%

Score
3

Parish/Wards - Amount of funding committed to the project 0
by applying Parish CIL funds

1

Details of other match funding secured

2

£500 - £250 Denver FC
and £250 Denver Cricket
Club – 7%
Total Score:

BC Officer Recommendation

Made by:CIL Officer_ Amanda Driver

Recommendation:
Reason for Recommendation:

Approval
Open Space/Community Facility

CIL Spending Panel Decision

25

6/15
Dated: 25 May 2020

Decision Approved/Refused:

Reason for Refusal (if applicable):

Service Manager/Exec Director Sign off
Signature:

Date:

26

Ref 09 Emneth - Childrens play area repairs
Applicant

Description

EPFC charity #802015

The childrens play area in Emneth is badly in need of repair. The annual ROSPA safety
inspection is pretty damning, and the area will fall into disrepair soon. I have attached a
quote for £16k total for all the repairs - any successful CIL funding would go towards us
paying for these repairs.
I have the latest ROSPA inspection report if required.
The childrens play area in Emneth is badly in need of repair. The annual ROSPA safety
inspection is pretty damning, and the area will fall into disrepair soon.
There is no other play area within walking distance of Emneth - and the fields are a
focus for the village. To have a play area so badly in need of investment could really do
with sorting out.
The total cost for repairs has been quoted at £16k. I would be able to cover the
remainder (from any successful application from CIL) from the charities other
fundraising activities, along with a donation from the local Parish Council.
Supporting Information Submitted: Playing Field Repair Quote

Amount of CIL funding requested: £10,000
Scoring Criteria
Amount of funding committed to the project by applying
organization own funding

% Matched/Notes
£2,000 – 20%

Score
4

Parish/Wards - Amount of funding committed to the project 0
by applying Parish CIL funds

1

Details of other match funding secured

5

£4,000 – 40%
Total Score:

BC Officer Recommendation

Made by:CIL Officer_ Amanda Driver

Recommendation:

Approval

Reason for Recommendation:

Community Facility/Open Space Infrastructure

CIL Spending Panel Decision
Decision Approved/Refused:

Reason for Refusal (if applicable):

Service Manager/Exec Director Sign off
Signature:

Date:

27

10/15
Dated: 25 May 2020

28

Ref 10 Hunstanton - Community Centre Youth Shelter
Applicant

Hunstanton Town Council

Description

To provide a 'Shelter' for the youth of the town to meet in a safe and sheltered
environment within the grounds of Hunstanton Community Centre, Avenue Road,
Hunstanton.
Hunstanton Town Council have identified the need to provide somewhere for youngsters
to congregate and meet after school, at weekends and during school holidays.
A youth shelter will provide the teenagers of the town their 'own space' to socialise
safely.
Hunstanton Town Council have observed children sheltering under the roof of the
Community Centre porch when the weather is bad and would like to provide a modern,
safe and pleasant shelter for youngsters to meet in after school.
When asked in a recent Youth Survey 'what the youth would like to see/use' a Shelter
was one of the requests.
The area identified will be landscaped, well lit at night and included in the current CCTV
coverage area.
Supporting Information Submitted:Youth Shelter Details

Amount of CIL funding requested: £4,000
Scoring Criteria
Amount of funding committed to the project by applying
organization own funding

% Matched/Notes
£4000 – 100%

Score
5

Parish/Wards - Amount of funding committed to the project 0
by applying Parish CIL funds

1

Details of other match funding secured

0

0
Total Score:

BC Officer Recommendation

Made by:CIL Officer_ Amanda Driver

Recommendation:

Approval

Reason for Recommendation:

Community Facility

CIL Spending Panel Decision
Decision Approved/Refused:

Reason for Refusal (if applicable):

Service Manager/Exec Director Sign off
Signature:

Date:

29

6/15
Dated: 25 May 2020

Ref 11 Hunstanton - Community Centre 'Body Balance Trim & Trail'
Applicant

Hunstanton Town Council

Description

To provide 'Trim & Trail' equipment for 3 - 12 yr olds within the grounds of Hunstanton
Community Centre.
To encourage more families to use the outdoor area at the Centre.
Trim and Trail equipment provides creative ways for 3 - 12 yr olds to entwine personal
development and learning. Equipment like climbers and overhead hanging apparatus
present kids with physical challenges and free play encourages them to take risks.
When kids take that risk and overcome the challenge, they develop a sense of
accomplishment that leads to higher self esteem.
There is a lack of play equipment in the area of the Community Centre.
Benefits of 'Trim & Trails;
A unique way to explore different heights
Improve cognitive ability
Develop core strength, as well as balance and coordination
Provide exercise in a safe and fun environment
Supporting Information Submitted:Trim Trail Details

Amount of CIL funding requested: £4,000
Scoring Criteria
Amount of funding committed to the project by applying
organization own funding

% Matched/Notes
£4,000 = 100%

Parish/Wards - Amount of funding committed to the project 0
by applying Parish CIL funds
Details of other match funding secured

1

Total Score:
BC Officer Recommendation

Made by:CIL Officer_ Amanda Driver

Recommendation:

Approval

Reason for Recommendation:

Community Facility/Open Space Infrastructure

CIL Spending Panel Decision
Decision Approved/Refused:

Reason for Refusal (if applicable):

Service Manager/Exec Director Sign off
Signature:

Date:

30

Score
5

6/15
Dated: 25 May 2020

Ref 12 East Rudham - Restructure of Playpark
Applicant

East Rudham Parish Council

Description

To remove existing play equipment, regrade play area with soil and reseed area. Front
fence to be removed before work and reinstated on completion.
Supply and install new equipment all with new safety surfaces.
The Parish council community Play Park has major equipment which is over 30 years
old and has caused concern when inspected annually by ROSPA. It has been decided
to completely reorganise the whole small site, replace two main items of aging
equipment, and retain the serviceable existing units. The site is near to the local school
and is used by the communities of East and West Rudham and surrounding catchment
area. The main benefits are continuation of the provision, continuing safety and to avoid
possible closure of the site.
Supporting Information Submitted:Reseeding Quote

Amount of CIL funding requested: £8,919
Scoring Criteria
Amount of funding committed to the project by applying
organization own funding

% Matched/Notes
£1,000 – 11%

Score
3

Parish/Wards - Amount of funding committed to the project 0
by applying Parish CIL funds

1

Details of other match funding secured

0

0
Total Score:

BC Officer Recommendation

Made by:CIL Officer_ Amanda Driver

Recommendation:

Approval

Reason for Recommendation:

Community Facility/Open Space Infrastructure

CIL Spending Panel Decision
Decision Approved/Refused:

Reason for Refusal (if applicable):

Service Manager/Exec Director Sign off
Signature:

Date:

31

4/15
Dated: 25 May 2020

Ref 13

North Runcton - Flood Alleviation Work

Applicant

Description

North Runcton Parish Council

Proposed ditching and culvert renewal to reduce seasonal water table and reduce risk to
domestic properties.
In recent years we have had increasingly regular seasonal problems with flooding of
gardens and at two properties, buildings, in the wet season (notably December to
February). In our increasingly wet winters, there is insufficient surface water drainage
infrastructure to intercept high water tables before they flood properties on lower
topography. The works will ensure that ditches intercept runoff and direct it away from
dwellings and gardens. Attached plans and photographs illustrate the problem this has
caused to parishioners and which the proposed works seed to mitigate in future.
Supporting Information Submitted:Flooding Illustrations

Amount of CIL funding requested: £3,750
Scoring Criteria
Amount of funding committed to the project by applying
organization own funding

% Matched/Notes
£3750 – 100%

Score
5

Parish/Wards - Amount of funding committed to the project 0
by applying Parish CIL funds

1

Details of other match funding secured

0

0
Total Score:

BC Officer Recommendation

Made by:CIL Officer_ Amanda Driver

Recommendation:

Approval

Reason for Recommendation:

Open Space/Green Infrastructure

CIL Spending Panel Decision
Decision Approved/Refused:

Reason for Refusal (if applicable):

Service Manager/Exec Director Sign off
Signature:

Date:

32

6/15
Dated: 25 May 2020

Fire brigade pumping at the Whins and Primrose Farm. Flooding to front and rear of properties.

33
Front room flooded at Primrose Farm; Sewers overflowing; inundation of paddocks to north of Common Lane/Chequers Lane.

Inundation at rear of the Whins.

Common Lane Flooding January - February 2021

Pond full at rear of old dairy - but not draining to ditch?

Areas flooded December, January,
February 2020-21

1. Redirect drainage off Towler land by
excavating E/W ditch to take it to existing deep
N/S ditch on common. (120 m new ditch).
2. Consider new swale or pond to hold excess
water at rear of Whins. Nature conservation
benefits.
3. Excavate new ditch/swale on Fuller paddock
at rear of residential properties to create new
cut off drainage. Drain into existing pond.
4. Ensure existing pond drains into deep N/S
ditch on common (new culvert?) Ensure all N/S
ditch is capable of free-flow.
5. New or improved cut off drain or swale to
intercept all drainage from South Fork paddock
and put it in the western ditch. Similar cut off drain
at rear of Whins.
6. Improve culvert or reopen ditch to take water
to culvert under Common Lane and into common
ditch.
7. Investigate potential to drain common in front
of 56 into pond.
8. Investigate potential to drain Whins front
garden into common ditch.
9. Review culvert from pond into common ditch
and consider enlarging it.

34
Suggested Flood
Avoidance Works i

Ref 14 Upwell Hall - Renovation Preparation
Applicant

Upwell Parish Council

Description

We wish to employ an architect to survey the hall, prepare drawings and a technical
design, to get tenders for the work to be carried out and to administer the contract once
placed with a builder. This will enable the council to safeguard the future of this vital
community facility in such a way as it will be environmentally friendly in line with the
Borough's Climate Change Policy.
Upwell Village Hall is owned by Upwell Parish Council, Because of this ownership the
hall is unable to access a lot of grant funding as local councils are inelligible for
consideration from most sources of grants. The hall was originally built in 1868 and is a
wonderful building inside. However, as you would expect with a building that old it is in
need of modernisation especially from an environmental/energy efficiency aspect. It
needs better insulation, better heating system and the electrics are in need of replacing
for safety reasons. We have tried getting quotes for the improvements but without a
detailed schedule of works being done we are unable to get comparable quotes. This
has prevented us getting on with a renovation.
Parish Council will fund up to £70000 for the building work
This application is only for the money for the architectural work needed prior to the full
project going ahead. Once we have quotes for the main project we will seek grant
support from WREN to help with that which we are hopeful would be forthcoming.

Additional
Information

Supporting Information Submitted:Upwell Photo
Upwell Hall is a well used and well loved community facility. Originally built in 1868 it
had been closed by the private owner in the 1990s. the parish council bought the
building and it has been run on behalf of the council by a group of volunteers ever since.
Prior to Covid it had people using it almost every day. However,it is an old building with
a very poor environmental footprint and in need of significant remedial work. This project
will enable us to bring the hall into the 21st century and safeguard the facility for future
generations of Upwell residents.
The parish council held an extraordinary outdoor council meeting in August to discuss
the future of the hall. It was well attended by the public and there was enormous support
for the parish council to take forward a renovation project. It was at that meeting that the
council voted overwhelmingly to renovate the hall in an environmentally friendly way to
safeguard its future. It was agreed at that meeting once the renovation was complete
that the council would seek to transfer the ownership to, or lease the building to, a local
charity for the future, the council to remain as custodian trustees.

Amount of CIL funding requested: £6,062
Scoring Criteria
Amount of funding committed to the project by applying
organization own funding

% Matched/Notes
£7,000 – 115%

Score
5

Parish/Wards - Amount of funding committed to the project 0
by applying Parish CIL funds

1

Details of other match funding secured

0
6/15

0
Total Score:

BC Officer Recommendation
Recommendation:

Made by:CIL Officer_ Amanda Driver
Approval

Reason for Recommendation:

Community Facility

35

Dated: 25 May 2020

CIL Spending Panel Decision
Decision Approved/Refused:

Reason for Refusal (if applicable):

Service Manager/Exec Director Sign off
Signature:

Date:

36

Ref 15 Walsoken - Chapnall Road bus shelter replacement
Applicant
Description

Walsoken Parish Council
To replace an existing bus shelter which is basically only a metal frame with a
corrugated roof which has holes in it. The shelter offers no protection from the weather
as the panels are missing.
Also to move the proposed new shelter forward so users can access it straight from the
footpath which will avoid them walking on the existing uneven paving slabs and area of
grass which are dangerous.
In addition a solar light is proposed to be included in the shelter to provide lighting
during the darker mornings and evenings.
This project replaces a run down bus shelter which is used by residents in the village to
get into the town centre. Many of the users are elderly people or parents with children
and it's important that they are protected from the elements whilst waiting for a bus. The
site of the existing shelter means users have to walk across an uneven path so the
proposed new shelter will be moved forward next to the footpath to make access easier.
Supporting Information Submitted:Bus Shelter Photo

Amount of CIL funding requested: £3,750
Scoring Criteria
Amount of funding committed to the project by applying
organization own funding

% Matched/Notes
£985 = 26%

Score
5

Parish/Wards - Amount of funding committed to the project 0
1
by applying Parish CIL funds
Details of other match funding secured
5
£3,750 Norfolk County
Council Parish Partnership
Scheme – 100%
Total Score:
BC Officer Recommendation
Recommendation:

Made by:CIL Officer_ Amanda Driver
Approval

Reason for Recommendation:

Leisure/Community Transport

CIL Spending Panel Decision
Decision Approved/Refused:

Reason for Refusal (if applicable):

Service Manager/Exec Director Sign off
Signature:

Date:

37

11/15
Dated: 25 May 2020

38

Ref 16 Sedgeford - Playing Field Outdoor Gym Project
Applicant

Sedgeford Parish Council

Description

To install an outside gym equipment package supplied by Sunshine Gym by Broxap
Enhance the facilities for children and adults to exercise outdoors. To enhance the
wellbeing of residents following the Covid pandemic.
The village would like to encourage the residents to think about their health and well
being especially after the recent year and the Covid pandemic. Residents have said how
much they enjoy using the equipment in other locations in the Borough but with no
public transport they cannot always access them To have them in the village will be a
big boost for the health and well being of all our residents.
Supporting Information Submitted:Equipment Quote

Amount of CIL funding requested: £8,800
Scoring Criteria
Amount of funding committed to the project by applying
organization own funding

% Matched/Notes
£3,000 – 34%

Score
5

Parish/Wards - Amount of funding committed to the project 0
by applying Parish CIL funds

1

Details of other match funding secured

0

0
Total Score:

6/15

BC Officer Recommendation

Made by:CIL Officer_ Amanda Driver

Recommendation:

Approval

Reason for Recommendation:

Community Facility/Leisure/Open Space Infrastructure

CIL Spending Panel Decision
Decision Approved/Refused:

Reason for Refusal (if applicable):

Service Manager/Exec Director Sign off
Signature:

Date:

39

Dated: 25 May 2020

Ref 18 Gaywood - GCC Outdoor Gym
Applicant
Description

Gaywood Community Centre
To buy and install outside of the community centre outside gym equipment for the use
by the local teenagers and children
This project will benefit the local community as the teenagers on both local estates have
nowhere to go and nothing to do so either stay indoors on electronic devices or go out
vandalizing the area for something to do

Additional
Information

Everyone labels the teenagers of today as thugs etc, yes we’ve experienced vandalism
and graffiti from local teenagers but we have spoken to them and they say it’s out of
boredom hopefully this project will answer that. This equipment will also be covered by
cameras this is not only for the safety of the building and equipment but the teenagers
that hang out here are protected by the cameras as security in a dark area for them

Amount of CIL funding requested: £10,000
Scoring Criteria
Amount of funding committed to the project by applying
organization own funding

% Matched/Notes
£10,000 = 100%

Parish/Wards - Amount of funding committed to the project 0
by applying Parish CIL funds
Details of other match funding secured

1

5
£10000 from the Lottery
Community Funding project
Total Score:

BC Officer Recommendation

Made by:CIL Officer_ Amanda Driver

Recommendation:

Approval

Reason for Recommendation:

Community Facility

CIL Spending Panel Decision
Decision Approved/Refused:

Reason for Refusal (if applicable):

Service Manager/Exec Director Sign off
Signature:

Score
5

Date:

40

11/15
Dated: 25 May 2020

Ref 19 Ringstead - Reroof Village Hall
Applicant
Description

Ringstead Village Hall Committee
Submitted as Community Project but does not meet the criteria
To re roof the village hall . The hall has a tin roof which has several holes causing the
wooden interior walls to become damp, eventually leading to rot. Water also drips onto
the wooden floor.
It is proposed to replace roof, like for like, but will also have an insulation lining which is
absent at the moment. The hall is in a conservation area.

Additional
Information

The Parish Council supports the hall with a small grant each year (they do not have a
large precept). They have also helped out with contributions to expenses in the past.
Locals do not want to see the hall shut as it an integral part of the village which brings
people together.
Evidence is gathered through talking to the villagers, all have expressed their support
to keep the hall open. If the hall is lost it will be another nail in the coffin for village life.
Residents of the village do not want to lose the village hall, it is over 100 years old and
is considered an asset to the village. Support for the village hall is shown every year
through fundraising by the villagers to help maintain it, the committee is made up of 7
dedicated villagers and there has been great interest in hiring the hall by groups
outside the village. Improved heating was installed last year through fundraising
making the hall more appealing

Amount of CIL funding requested: £11,500
Scoring Criteria
Amount of funding committed to the project by applying
organization own funding

% Matched/Notes
£11,656.80 – 101%

Score
5

Parish/Wards - Amount of funding committed to the project 0
by applying Parish CIL funds

1

Details of other match funding secured

0

BC Officer Recommendation

0

Total Score:
Made by:CIL Officer_ Amanda Driver

6/15
Dated: 25 May 2020

Recommendation:

Refusal of £11,500 as Community Project
Approval of £10,000 as local Project

Reason for Recommendation:

Allocate £10,000 as Local Project - Community Facility
Refusal as Community Project as does not meet the pre-application
criteria and no evidence provided of local support.
Ringstead is a small village/hamlet and no new development is
considered in the current Local Plan.

CIL Spending Panel Decision

41

Decision Approved/Refused:

Reason for Refusal (if applicable):

Service Manager/Exec Director Sign off
Signature:

Date:

42

Ref 20 Snettisham – Beach Road TROD - 21/22 stage
Applicant
Description

Snettisham Parish Council
The project is a TROD footway connecting the main body of the Village to the Beach
alongside Beach Rd. It will enable residents and visitors to access the Beach on a
dedicated footway, avoiding walking on the main roadway - currently a mix of 30mph
and 60mph. This is the latest section of a rolling project to complete the entire route over
a period of time. The completed portions have been extensively used, especially for
exercise during lockdown, and residents have been appreciative and supportive of the
long-term project. It also will connect with the new Scout hut, allowing children a safer
route, encouraging a reduction in car use. Finally it will connect with the coastal path,
and is listed as part of circular walks recently introduced by NCC.
TROD footway. We have over recent years in several stages worked on extending the
TROD footway on Beach Rd working towards completion along the lengthy road
between the A149 bypass and the Beach, which previously had no footway. This year
we are working on the penultimate stretch, working east from the recently completed
section back into the countryside from the small built up area on Beach Rd. This is a
complicated section due to the Z bend and speed limit signage, plus several accesses.
It will make a great difference to safety, before we commit next year to the final lengthy
section.
Supporting Information Submitted: Partnership Bid Details

Additional
Information

NCC has agreed to fund half via the Parish Partnership Scheme, and the Parish is
seeking CIL funding to match this; the PC funds allocated will then be used on another
project (Market Square development in the Village) and not reabsorbed into reserves.

Amount of CIL funding requested: £4,586
Scoring Criteria
Amount of funding committed to the project by applying
organization own funding

% Matched/Notes
0

Score
0

Parish/Wards - Amount of funding committed to the project 0
by applying Parish CIL funds

1

Details of other match funding secured

5

£4586 NCC= 100%

BC Officer Recommendation

Total Score:
6/15
Made by:CIL Officer_ Amanda Driver
Dated: 25 May 2020

Recommendation:

Approval

Reason for Recommendation:

Leisure/Open Space

CIL Spending Panel Decision
Decision Approved/Refused:

Reason for Refusal (if applicable):

Service Manager/Exec Director Sign off
Signature:

Date:

43

Ref 21 North Wootton Park - All Weather Parking
Applicant
Description

North Wootton Parish Council
Submitted as Community Project but does not meet the criteria
This project is to turn the remainder of the Wootton Park car park into an area that
would be usable all year round.
At present the majority of the area is not usable during the wet winter months. and this
restricts the amount of cars that can park there. This in turn causes parking congestion
on the surrounding roads.
Wootton Park is a great community asset for both North and South Wootton. It is also
the home of the Wootton's Football Club which at present has over 20 teams playing for
it. On football match days, the size of the car park is small compared to the volume of
cars that are trying to use it. During the winter months this is further restricted by the fact
that only half is laid to hardcore and shingle. If we could have the whole area put down
to hard core and shingle this would be a real asset to the community. Everyone we
speak to on this matter considers this a very good plan of action and would mean the
whole car park is usable all year around.

Supporting Information Submitted: Car Park Details
Amount of CIL funding requested: £12,000
Scoring Criteria
% Matched/Notes
Amount of funding committed to the project by applying
0
organization own funding

Score
0

Parish/Wards - Amount of funding committed to the project 0
by applying Parish CIL funds

1

Details of other match funding secured

4

£2,000 Wootton Park
Football Club = 17%
Total Score:

5/15

BC Officer Recommendation

Made by:CIL Officer_ Amanda Driver

Dated: 25 May 2020

Recommendation:

Refusal as Community Project
Approval of £10,000 as Local Project

Reason for Recommendation:

Allocate £10,000 as Local Project - Community Facility/Leisure
Refusal as Community Project as does not meet the pre-application
criteria and no evidence provided of local support.

CIL Spending Panel Decision
Decision Approved/Refused:

Reason for Refusal (if applicable):

Service Manager/Exec Director Sign off
Signature:

Date:

44

45

Ref 22 Thornham - Gazebo for children and young adults play and sports area
Applicant

Thornham Village Hall & Playing Field Ltd

Description

We want to provide a Forest Pavilion shelter by our outdoor play and exercise area. This
is both for adults to use whilst supervising children and also to provide shelter,
particularly for younger children in the event of unexpected rain, or indeed on hot days
when there is sunshine. We believe it will enhance our play and sports area and
encourage much more outdoor activity. Further we want to fence the whole area, which
encompasses the children's play area, adult gym equipment, log pile climber and table
tennis table, all of which is provided by Thornham Village Hall & Playing Field free of
charge to the Community. This will show a physical separation from the sports playing
pitches (cricket and football), which will both ensure safety particularly of children and
also ensure that organised sports and more general play have their own areas.
The total cost of the project will be £10,258.
Supporting Information Submitted: Pavillion Quote

Additional
Information

Thornham Village Hall & Playing Field Ltd (a Charity 1141442) provides a children's play
area, adult gym equipment, outdoor table tennis facility and a log pile climbing frame for
use by Adults and Children alike. This brings the community together on the playing field
and provides an opportunity for outdoor exercise and play. We are expanding our play
and exercise are with a second table tennis table and an outdoor Combo Gym. We
would like this grant to help us provide two additional things: a Gazebo for adults and
children to shelter (from rain or sun) and a post and rail fence to demarcate the area to
ensure safety of children in particular. This will provide a safe space for adults and
children to meet outdoors and supervise children and young adults on the play and
sports equipment in Thornham. It will encourage exercise and outdoor sport and play.
The fencing will ensure safety of children and also demarcate the play area. The gazebo
will provide much needed shelter from the West Norfolk weather!
Amount of CIL funding requested: £9,500
Scoring Criteria
% Matched/Notes
Score
Amount of funding committed to the project by applying
0
organization own funding
Parish/Wards - Amount of funding committed to the project 0
by applying Parish CIL funds
Details of other match funding secured

1

BC Officer Recommendation
Recommendation:

£ 758 Village Hall & playing 2
Field – 8%
Total Score:
3/15
Made by:CIL Officer_ Amanda Driver
Dated: 25 May 2020
Approval

Reason for Recommendation:

Community Facility/Leisure

CIL Spending Panel Decision
Decision Approved/Refused:

Reason for Refusal (if applicable):

Service Manager/Exec Director Sign off
Signature:

Date:

46

Ref 24 Walpole - Playground Project
Applicant

Walpole Parish Council

Description

To provide replacement play equipment and safety surfacing as identified by Fenland
Leisure Products following the annual inspection.
The playground is next to the pre and primary school and used by all local families on a
regular basis. The replacement items are the Toddler Swing, Parallel Bars and Burma
Bridge, all of which were used regularly by parishioners. The playground is also a
meeting area for families (restrictions permitting) as facilities are limited in the village.

Amount of CIL funding requested: £3,400
Scoring Criteria
Amount of funding committed to the project by applying
organization own funding

% Matched/Notes
£3466 – 102%

Score
5

Parish/Wards - Amount of funding committed to the project 0
by applying Parish CIL funds

1

Details of other match funding secured

0

0
Total Score:

BC Officer Recommendation

Made by:CIL Officer_ Amanda Driver

Recommendation:

Approval

Reason for Recommendation:

Community Facility/Leisure/Open Space

CIL Spending Panel Decision
Decision Approved/Refused:

Reason for Refusal (if applicable):

Service Manager/Exec Director Sign off
Signature:

Date:

47

6/15
Dated: 25 May 2020

Ref 26 Downham Market Town - Council Market Starter Kits
Applicant

Downham Market Town Council

Description

Prospective new market traders and community groups would be allowed to loan the
equipment. We have a number of events we would like to help deliver an evening
Market, Young Traders and a Green Market are some of the planned activities this grant
will directly support.
These kits will have everything required for them to be part of the market, or to host a
pop up community event - a street food market for instance. It will include gazebos,
tables, awnings, lighting etc. This will allow individuals and groups to run a stall or
community event without initial capital outlay, this would appeal to people who have
perhaps lost jobs or income during the recent pandemic. They may have started a
business and are ready to try out ideas and opportunities. It would also directly support
some of our new local community groups to get started increase their profile, and make
them visible.
As these new groups and traders are offered the chance to be involved in the market,
then the market in turn will grow, and it will offer a broader and more diverse range of
goods services and information.
The pandemic had a damaging economic effect on the town and we as a Town Council
will seek out opportunities to reverse this. Growing leisure activities and making more
use of our open space to run community events is a key part of that scheme.
The town Council will be responsible for the maintenance of the equipment should the
grant application be successful.

Additional
Information

This application is seeking CIL Funding to support a Local Project aimed and growing
community facilities and making more use of our open spaces.
The Town Council are seeking a grant to help create a number of new events and
support a wider range of people, we want to see community facilities expanded and our
open spaces used more regularly and to appeal to a broader demographic.
Downham Market Town Council intend to purchase 4 Market Trader Starter Kits, giving
prospective new traders access to the market without having to purchase all of the
equipment. The Council would allow new stall holders to loan the equipment for a set
period. We would also make these kits available to local community groups who might
want to hold an awareness event within the town centre, but again might not have the
necessary equipment to support such an endeavour. These kits would also be made
available to support new events bringing in groups currently under represented, we aim
to hold some evening markets, a young peoples market and a green traders market
these are just some of the initiatives we are currently looking to deliver.
Working in partnership with community groups builds relationships and supports local
residents and brings numerous economic and social benefits to the town.
The Market is an essential part of the town and a valuable asset to the local community,
a thriving market place has benefits for all. There is interest from new prospective stall
holders, recently we have seen growth in the number and variety of stalls, benefitting
the whole community. As the Market grows then more visitors and shoppers are brought
in to the town, helping to make Downham Market a go to destination. With a popular and
thriving market that innovates and encourages new business the benefits for the whole
community are many.
The town council is determined to seek out opportunities to make more use of our open
spaces and to increase visitor numbers and see more leisure activities take place, this
grant will directly support all of the community.
Amount of CIL funding requested: £5,000

48

Scoring Criteria
Amount of funding committed to the project by applying
organization own funding

% Matched/Notes
0

Score
0

Parish/Wards - Amount of funding committed to the project 0
by applying Parish CIL funds

1

Details of other match funding secured

0

0
Total Score:

1/15

BC Officer Recommendation

Made by:CIL Officer_ Amanda Driver

Recommendation:

Approval

Reason for Recommendation:

Local project by Downham Market TC to support local business startups.
Community Facility/Leisure

CIL Spending Panel Decision
Decision Approved/Refused:

Reason for Refusal (if applicable):

Service Manager/Exec Director Sign off
Signature:

Date:

49

Dated: 25 May 2020

Ref 29 Feltwell - ResurfaceTennis Court
Applicant

Feltwell Parish Council

Description

To rebuild and resurface our tennis court
This project is to refurbish our existing tennis court which is used regularly by
parishioners and others from neighbouring parishes. Our tennis court is 15+ years old
and needs resurfacing again to enable it to be used to it's full potential.
With the need to encourage people to participate in outside sporting activities, we would
like to bring our tennis court up to a good standard. This facility is offered free of charge
to everybody.

Supporting Information Submitted: Tennis Court Photo
Amount of CIL funding requested: £6,999
Scoring Criteria
% Matched/Notes
Amount of funding committed to the project by applying
£2,000 – 29%
organization own funding

Score
5

Parish/Wards - Amount of funding committed to the project 0
by applying Parish CIL funds

1

Details of other match funding secured

0

0
Total Score:

BC Officer Recommendation

Made by:CIL Officer_ Amanda Driver

Recommendation:

Approval

Reason for Recommendation:

Community Facility/Leisure

CIL Spending Panel Decision
Decision Approved/Refused:

Reason for Refusal (if applicable):

Service Manager/Exec Director Sign off
Signature:

Date:

50

6/15
Dated: 25 May 2020

51

Ref 30 Feltwell - Replace Fencing Around Tennis Court
Applicant

Feltwell Parish Council

Description

To remove chain link fencing and fittings, paint all ironwork, attach new fittings and line
wires, and attach new chain link.
We have applied for funding to refurbish our existing tennis court and are applying to
replace the surrounding fence. This facility is regularly used and parts of the fence need
replacing.
Our tennis court is offered free of charge to all users and the current surrounding
fencing needs replacing.

Supporting Information Submitted: Fencing Quote
Amount of CIL funding requested: £2,900
Scoring Criteria
% Matched/Notes
Amount of funding committed to the project by applying
£1,000 = 34%
organization own funding

Score
5

Parish/Wards - Amount of funding committed to the project 0
by applying Parish CIL funds

1

Details of other match funding secured

0

0
Total Score:

6/15

BC Officer Recommendation

Made by:CIL Officer_ Amanda Driver

Recommendation:

Approval

Reason for Recommendation:

Maintenance of Community Facility/Leisure facility

CIL Spending Panel Decision
Decision Approved/Refused:

Reason for Refusal (if applicable):

Service Manager/Exec Director Sign off
Signature:

Date:

52

Dated: 25 May 2020

Ref 33 Burnham Norton - Parish Sandpit
Applicant

Burnham Norton Parish Meeting

Description

The first stage of a scheme to enable the community to use the Parish Sandpit area as
a wildlife project and to safeguard it as a valued and historic community asset.
The first stage of the project would be completed well within five years of this
application. The fencing and other groundwork would not start until autumn/winter 2021
to avoid disturbance of nests etc.
Dossier of the background history of the Parish Sandpit land. Quote from Surveyor and
solicitor to register the land (based on the lowest quote provided), quote from fencing
company, map of the area.

Additional
Information

Supporting Information Submitted: Legal & Fencing Quotes
The land concerned, referred to as the Parish Sandpit, has been unused for years and
has not been registered with HM Land Registry. The detailed background history can be
found in a comprehensive supporting dossier can be found on the website
.https://burnhamnortonpm.wixsite.com/website.
At present, the land cannot be used and enjoyed used because it is overgrown,
inadequately fenced and vulnerable because it is unregistered.
The project would benefit the small local community of Burnham Norton, which has
owned the land for nearly 200 years, in the following ways:
a) By registering the land for safekeeping for future generations with HM Land Registry.
Quotes from surveyors and solicitors have been obtained for this purpose (Items 2 and
3). The final level of legal and registration costs will depend to some extent on how
much of the necessary research work is regarded as already available in the attached
dossier. The application seeks an estimated £3,600 towards the solicitors’ costs and
£510 for surveyors’ costs .
b) By clearing and fencing the boundary of the Parish Sandpit, tidying up the land and
providing better access. The land has been untouched for many years and is extremely
overgrown, to the extent that it is impossible to walk through.
c) By enhancing the environmental and ecological value of this village-owned land for
the benefit and well-being of the community. The aim is to make the Parish Sandpit into
a little oasis of biodiversity that parishioners can visit and help to manage for their
fitness and well-being. Contact has been made, and is continuing, with ecologists and
other advisers to specify and enhance the significant ecological potential of the land.
A map of the Parish Sandpit has been provided.

Amount of CIL funding requested: £9,421.80
Scoring Criteria
Amount of funding committed to the project by applying
organization own funding

% Matched/Notes
0

Score
0

Parish/Wards - Amount of funding committed to the project 0
by applying Parish CIL funds

1

Details of other match funding secured

0

0
Total Score:

BC Officer Recommendation

Made by:CIL Officer_ Amanda Driver

Recommendation:

Approval

53

1/15

Dated: 25 May 2020

Reason for Recommendation:

Green Infrastructure/Open Space

CIL Spending Panel Decision
Decision Approved/Refused:

Reason for Refusal (if applicable):

Service Manager/Exec Director Sign off
Signature:

Date:

54

1. Map of area

55

Ref 34 Grimston - Green Light _ LED Light Replacement
Applicant

Grimston Parish Council

Description

To replace the existing old street lighting stock with LED lanterns to provide a more
energy-efficient lighting source improving the local carbon footprint.
To continue to provide a safe environment throughout the with better-designed lighting
providing the right level of illumination without increasing light pollution
To bring long term financial savings in Energy and Maintenance
The replacement with LEDs of the current lighting stock is nearing the end of its useful
life represents a significant investment in the local infrastructure by the Parish Council,
given the level of its precept. Additional funding would enable the Council to have its
entire lighting stock replaced at the same time bringing more immediate and long-term
benefits quickly. The Council has allocated 50% of its own CIL allocation to the project.
The provision of modern street lighting provides many benefits to the community from
reduced accidents to a reduction in crime and the fear of crime, allowing residents to
feel safe in both their homes and coming/leaving their homes at night. This project will
also limit the impact of street lighting on the environment by minimising the discharge of
greenhouse gasses, reducing the effects of light pollution as well as the reduction in
cost and consumption of energy.

Supporting Information Submitted: Lighting Quote
Amount of CIL funding requested: £5,900
Scoring Criteria
% Matched/Notes
Amount of funding committed to the project by applying
£3500 = 59%
organization own funding

Score
5

Parish/Wards - Amount of funding committed to the project £544 = 9%
by applying Parish CIL funds

1

Details of other match funding secured

0

0
Total Score:

BC Officer Recommendation

Made by:CIL Officer_ Amanda Driver

Recommendation:

Approval

Reason for Recommendation:

Community Facility/Leisure

CIL Spending Panel Decision
Decision Approved/Refused:

Reason for Refusal (if applicable):

Service Manager/Exec Director Sign off
Signature:

Date:

56

6/15
Dated: 25 May 2020

Ref 36 West Winch - Extension and Upgrade to Existing Changing Rooms.
Applicant

West Winch and Setchey Parish Council.

Description

Extend and refurbish the existing football changing rooms.
The project will totally transform the area of the building that currently houses the
football changing rooms, plans ‘appendix 4 and 5‘.This will involve extending the
building complex to include new changing facilities for Home and Away Teams as well
as providing changing facilities for two match officials. In addition a small kitchenette will
be made available to provide teas and light snacks for players and supporters. The
planned transformation will include disabled access throughout. The area will be
extended and will fully comply with the regulations currently required by the Football
Association (FA) Plans have been drawn up ‘appendix 4 and 5‘ , the FA and Football
Foundation have given their approval and stated that plans meet their current
requirements with a letter of support ‘appendix 2‘ .
The Village Hall has had an urgent need for a small committee room complete with its
own kitchenette almost since it was built some 47 years ago. Currently clubs and
organisations have to hire the large hall whereas a small meeting room would be usually
be suffice. Provision for an additional small room is being made as part of this project to
fill this requirement. Part of the 'old' changing rooms will be transformed into a meeting
room being equipped also with a small kitchenette and toilet. This will effectively free up
the larger hall for hire.
The Parish Council also needs a secure storeroom to house the tools and equipment as
used by their Handyman and Groundsman. This store room will form part of the
transformation of the existing changing rooms. Again, this potential storeroom is an
urgent requirement as at present council owned equipment is being stored in private
dwellings and in consequence items are not covered by the Parish Council’s own
insurance.
Costings
The total capital cost of the project as estimated by the Norfolk County Football
Association Ltd against their calculations is £250k to extend and refurbish the existing
football changing rooms. The project has been recognised as being of strategic
importance and working with the FA to develop a Football Foundation funding
application for grant of up to £150k to contribute towards the total project build costs.
Supporting Information Submitted:
x Letters of Support
o Football Association and Football Foundation
o Table Tennis Club
o Bowls Club
o British Legion
o Community Letter_Support
x FA Development Plan
x William Burt FA Prospectus
x Proposed Site Plan

57

Additional
Information

The Benefits:
1. Encouraging local people to become more involved in sport and fitness, improving
health, wellbeing and thereby reducing inactivity and obesity.
2. Helping local children and young people make new friends, develop social and
practical skills, improving relationships and their confidence.
3. Older people will feel less isolated.
4. Sustaining village life and community relations.
Our Vision:
Our vision sees our new facility within the community, providing an essential, vibrant,
inclusive, accessible, sustainable, and safe facility that is used, valued and supported by
the whole community.
Our Mission:
Our mission is to promote, enable and facilitate inclusive activities which embrace and
address the education, training, welfare, health and well-being, social and sporting and
recreational needs.

All construction work is to be put out to competitive tender. The key programme
milestones are as follows:
• Tender Period - October / November 2021.
• Construction Phase - First quarter 2022.
• Practical Completion - First Quarter 2023.
Amount of CIL funding requested: £10,000
Scoring Criteria
% Matched/Notes
Score
Amount of funding committed to the project by applying
organization own funding

£10,000 – 100%

5

Parish/Wards - Amount of funding committed to the project 0
by applying Parish CIL funds

1

Details of other match funding secured

5

£22,000 – 220%

Total Score:
BC Officer Recommendation

Made by:CIL Officer_ Amanda Driver

Recommendation:

Approval

Reason for Recommendation:

Community Facility/Leisure

CIL Spending Panel Decision
Decision Approved/Refused:

Reason for Refusal (if applicable):

Service Manager/Exec Director Sign off
Signature:

Date:

58

11/15
Dated: 25 May 2020

59

Existing Changing Rooms ‘ Exterior / Interior layout ‘ .
The changing rooms were built in 1993.
The old changing rooms will be developed into committee size meeting room ( 23.5 sq.meters )
with its own kitchen and toilet. The area will also incorporate a room for storage of the Public
Open Space [ POS ] ground maintenance equipment and combined workshop for our Parish
Maintenance Team.

The Need for Change for the Community.

60

61

Ref 39 Holme next the Sea - Beach Road ditches
Applicant

Holme-next-the-Sea Parish Council

Description

Clearance, repair / renovation of two Parish Council owned ditches in Beach Road,
Holme-next-the Sea to ensure they perform effectively as part of the drainage
infrastructure and enhance the well-being of residents and the wider community.

Additional
Information

Clearance of the ditches may reveal additional work to be undertaken but we would not
expect the project to take longer than 4 weeks.
Clearing and renovation of these two ditches in Beach Road in Holme-next-the-Sea
primarily meet the following two criteria as set down in the CIL funding guidelines:
• Community Facilities - Creating and maintaining good quality places that make a
positive difference to people’s lives to maintain accessible, clean, pleasant and safe
public places and communities.
• Open Space and Leisure - Creating and maintaining good quality places that make a
positive difference to people’s lives to maintain accessible, clean, pleasant and safe
public places and communities and help to improve the health and well-being of our
communities.
The two ditches have declined in their effectiveness to perform the tasks that they were
installed for. As a result, this area of Beach Road is subject to frequent flooding
(including sewage water), which aside from the health risks, also presents a barrier to
safe access to the dunes and beach beyond which contribute to the health and wellbeing of our communities.
Repair and renovation would enhance the look and functionality of these ditches and
provide residents and the wider community with a range of benefits associated with their
well-being.
In addition to the benefits listed above the repair and restoration of the ditches
contribute to supporting some of the Policies included in Holme-next-the-Sea's
Neighbourhood Plan 2016-2036 - http://www.holme-next-the-sea.co.uk/nedevplan
Principally these relate to:
- HNTS Policy 7 - Natural Capital and Ecosystem Services - which attaches importance
to water quality, flow and availability plus looks to maintain and enhance the role of the
parish as a place for the promotion of health and well-being whilst also managing the
risk of flooding.
-HNTS Policy 24 - Water Resource Management - which attaches importance to a
proactive approach to water management which also recognises the recreational value
of water features where the public have access.
If the Parish Council is able to secure funding through this scheme, the intention is to
approach the Water Management Alliance with a request for them to adopt the ditches
as part of their maintenance programme to ensure sustainability for the future.

Supporting Information Submitted: Beach Road Photo
Amount of CIL funding requested: £7,800
Scoring Criteria
% Matched/Notes
Amount of funding committed to the project by applying
£780 – 10%
organization own funding

Score
2

Parish/Wards - Amount of funding committed to the project 0
by applying Parish CIL funds

1

Details of other match funding secured

0

0
Total Score:

BC Officer Recommendation

Made by:CIL Officer_ Amanda Driver

Recommendation:

Approval

62

3/15
Dated: 25 May 2020

Reason for Recommendation:

Green Infrastructure/Open Space

CIL Spending Panel Decision
Decision Approved/Refused:

Reason for Refusal (if applicable):

Service Manager/Exec Director Sign off
Signature:

Date:

63

64
,

/

•

I

I

Ref 42 North Wootton - Conversion to LED Street Lighting
Applicant

North Wootton Parish Council

Description

Submitted as Community Project – does not meet criteria
To convert all our street lights to LED's. Thus reducing the energy use by 65-75% per
annum
There are many reason for wanting to do this project.
1. Saving Energy
2. Updating Street lighting (more controllable)
3. Reducing the Parish Carbon Footprint
All residents in the Parish that have been asked consider it to be an obvious cost saving
and environmentally correct thing to do.
This is a project that has the environment and carbon footprint reduction considerations
at the top of the list.
Supporting Information Submitted: LED Lighting Details

Additional
Information

In the current climate it is the right thing to do.
An LED light can last 100,000 hours [source: Rosenthal and Barringer]. These lights
also have reduced maintenance costs because of their long lives, and they give off less
heat than other bulbs. Because they last so long, LEDs are suitable for places where
replacing light bulbs is expensive, inconvenient or otherwise difficult.
There are over 50,000 street lights in Norfolk. We're responsible for around 179 street
lights within our Parish of North Wootton. Other organisations are responsible for the
remainder!
So within the core strategy of the BCKLWN this fulfils
2.0.20 - Climate change and energy use
7.1.1 The Government has now committed the UK to cutting greenhouse-gas emissions
by 80% by 2050, and we as a Parish Council can reduce our energy use by 65-75%

Amount of CIL funding requested: £24,000
Scoring Criteria
Amount of funding committed to the project by applying
organization own funding

% Matched/Notes
£8,500 – 35%

Score
5

Parish/Wards - Amount of funding committed to the project 0
by applying Parish CIL funds

1

Details of other match funding secured

0

BC Officer Recommendation
Recommendation:
Reason for Recommendation:

0

Total Score:
Made by:CIL Officer_ Amanda Driver

6/15
Dated: 25 May 2020

Refusal as Community Project
Approval of £10,000 as Local Project
Does not meet current Community Criteria/no evidence of local and
stakeholder support/not evidence of NCC highways support/no future
development identified within Local Plan.
Allocate £10,000 as Local Project - green infrastructure/leisure

CIL Spending Panel Decision

65

Decision Approved/Refused:

Reason for Refusal (if applicable):

Service Manager/Exec Director Sign off
Signature:

Date:

66

Ref 44 Dersingham - Lamp column replacement
Applicant

Dersingham Parish Council

Description

Replacement of 5 concrete lamp columns that have been identified as at risk of
structural failure. This places residents and road users at risk and failure to take
appropriate action could lead to damage to property and serious injury or even death to
motorists and/or pedestrians.
Dersingham Parish Council wish to replace 5 concrete lamp columns The project is to
replace a group of concrete lamp columns which are at risk of structural failure. A visual
survey has been carried out and 5 of the same age and design have been identified as
being at risk of structural failure with the potential to damage property or cause injury or
even death to road users. The alternative to replacement would be removal and
because of the costs involved this option is considered to be unacceptable. Good street
lighting is essential as it makes a significant contribution to road safety, it helps to
promote security, reduces the fear of crime and improves the quality of life of residents.

Additional
Information

Quotes have been obtained and the cost of a new 5metre galvanised tubular steel
column with an Indo Air 1 plus 25watt LED lantern controlled by photo electric cell with
pre-set dimming from midnight to 5a.m. is £894. The cost from UK power networks to
disconnect the old lamp and connect the new is £1272. This gives a cost per column of
£2166. The total cost to replace the 5 columns identified is as £10,830.

Amount of CIL funding requested: £5,414
Scoring Criteria
Amount of funding committed to the project by applying
organization own funding

% Matched/Notes
£5,414 – 100%

Score
5

Parish/Wards - Amount of funding committed to the project 0
by applying Parish CIL funds

1

Details of other match funding secured

0

0
Total Score:

BC Officer Recommendation

Made by:CIL Officer_ Amanda Driver

Recommendation:

Approval

Reason for Recommendation:

Community Facility

CIL Spending Panel Decision
Decision Approved/Refused:

Reason for Refusal (if applicable):

Service Manager/Exec Director Sign off
Signature:

Date:

67

6/15
Dated: 25 May 2020

Ref 46 Burnham Thorpe - Project HMS Victory Play Equipment
Applicant

Burnham Thorpe Playing Field Committee

Description

Replacement of HMS Victory play-boat and Installation of a Cantilever swing set.
The play area in Burnham Thorpe requires significant replacement and improvement.
We removed the play boat at the beginning of last year following an inadequate safety
report. The play area is well used by a variety of age groups and benefits the whole
village. We would like to make the area more suitable for a wider age range and plan to
install a new play boat, along with a counter lever swing that can also be used by
teenagers. We currently have children residing in or regularly visiting the village from 2
months through to 16. Due to lack of pavements, there is no other facility to allow social
gatherings for younger people without being taken by a parent in a vehicle or cycling. As
a committee we would continue to fundraise and add to the facilities.
The wider area is used for a host of village social events such as the duck race, cricket
and BBQ's.

Additional
Information

Supporting Information Submitted: Equipment Quote
As a committee we have been extremely active in raising funds prior to COVID 19. We
had a month long period in which village residents could provide suggestions for the
new play equipment. Our findings were that everyone would like to see HMS Victory
replaced as the village History of Nelson is something residents are proud of and keen
to impress upon the next generations. We also noticed a gap in equipment for older
children so over 9 teenagers expressly requested a cantilever swing, independantly.
The last year has been incredibly challenging for all and we have an ageing population,
of which many have lost their confidence in independence. If we were able to install
theses items, not only would we benefit the younger generation, but also the older
demographic by providing a fun and functional space in which to meet their families in a
safe environment within the village.
After being involved in selecting the play equipment, many of our village teenagers have
been active at helping to maintain the area when we have work party days and have
also assisted with our great efforts at fundraising, which has been stagnant for over a
year due to the virus. It would make such a difference to our village to be able to install
these items this year when many families will be remaining at home during the school
holidays.

Amount of CIL funding requested:£10,000
Scoring Criteria
Amount of funding committed to the project by applying
organization own funding

% Matched/Notes
0

Parish/Wards - Amount of funding committed to the project 0
by applying Parish CIL funds
Details of other match funding secured

Score
0
1

£16,000 Burnham Thorpe 5
Playing Field Committee –
160%
Total Score:
6/15

BC Officer Recommendation

Made by:CIL Officer_ Amanda Driver

Recommendation:

Approval

68

Dated: 25 May 2020

Reason for Recommendation:

Community Facility/Leisure/Open Space

CIL Spending Panel Decision
Decision Approved/Refused:

Reason for Refusal (if applicable):

Service Manager/Exec Director Sign off
Signature:

Date:

69

Ref 47 Docking - Appearance of 3 parish ponds
Applicant

Docking Parish Council

Description

The Parish are responsible for 3 ponds, these are overgrown, have rubbish within them
and bring down the appearance of the village. Members of the public have also stated
that they are unsightly and that if possible should be addressed
We have contacted a company that specialise in pond clearing and replanting, these
have provided us with a quote which covers the 3 ponds.
They will clear rubbish, nettles, brambles and weeds then they will replant the area with
new plants that will transform the areas into lovely spaces for parishioners to enjoy

Supporting Information Submitted: Pond Quote
Amount of CIL funding requested: £3,700
Scoring Criteria
% Matched/Notes
Amount of funding committed to the project by applying
£3,700 – 100%
organization own funding

Score
5

Parish/Wards - Amount of funding committed to the project 0
by applying Parish CIL funds

1

Details of other match funding secured

0

0
Total Score:

BC Officer Recommendation

Made by:CIL Officer_ Amanda Driver

Recommendation:

Approval

Reason for Recommendation:

Green Infrastructure/Open Space

CIL Spending Panel Decision
Decision Approved/Refused:

Reason for Refusal (if applicable):

Service Manager/Exec Director Sign off
Signature:

Date:

70

6/15
Dated: 25 May 2020

Ref 48 Docking - Pound/Cage Restoration
Applicant

Docking Parish Council

Description

Restoration of Grade II listed asset which belongs to the Parish, with the hope to turn
into an Information Centre is permission is granted in the future
The Pound/Cage is a listed building belonging to the Parish. It requires the roof to be
repaired, the door is broken and needs a new one making, the floor needs work too
The idea is that the building could maybe be used as an information centre if its water
tight and permission is given for this application.

Supporting Information Submitted: Dog Pound Quote
Amount of CIL funding requested: £1,450
Scoring Criteria
% Matched/Notes
Amount of funding committed to the project by applying
£500 – 34%
organization own funding

Score
5

Parish/Wards - Amount of funding committed to the project 0
by applying Parish CIL funds

1

Details of other match funding secured

0

0
Total Score:

BC Officer Recommendation

Made by:CIL Officer_ Amanda Driver

Recommendation:

Approval

Reason for Recommendation:

Community Facility

CIL Spending Panel Decision
Decision Approved/Refused:

Reason for Refusal (if applicable):

Service Manager/Exec Director Sign off
Signature:

Date:

71

6/15
Dated: 25 May 2020

Ref 49 Castle Acre - Improved play area safety fencing
Applicant

Castle Acre Parish Council

Description

In 2020, a village fundraising group secured £110,000 funding for a brand new, two
section play area comprising of an enclosed section for toddlers (under sevens) and an
open area with different equipment for juniors. The open area abuts the existing
elementary skate park. Both areas are fully accessible. The two sections are on the
western side of the public playing field (owned by CAPC), alongside the busy
Massingham Road. The playing field is secured by an old 1.2 metres chain link fence
that runs the full length of the play area. There are two entrances to the enlarged play
area, to the south near the bus shelter, to the north by the skate park. As part of the
funding package, 25 metres of the old fencing along the toddlers play area was replaced
by a quality green bow top metal fence railings. CAPC now intends to upgrade the rest
of the 95 metre length 1.2 metre fencing to Heras bow top railings , powder coated
green. This railing is recommended for playgrounds and meets ROSPA standards. This
installation will improve the safety of children at play and bring the pleasant appearance
of the new fencing in line with the high quality play area which has received much
praise. It will help maintain the image of Castle Acre as a conservation village which
continues to make a positive difference to residents’ lives. The lowest quote received for
the supply and installation of the bow top railings is £8,600 net of VAT (CAPC will
reclaim VAT).
Improved safety for children and their parents, improved aesthetic appearance in this
conservation village.

Supporting Information Submitted: Fencing Photo
Amount of CIL funding requested: £5,100
Scoring Criteria
% Matched/Notes
Amount of funding committed to the project by applying
£1,000 – 20%
organization own funding

Score
4

Parish/Wards - Amount of funding committed to the project 0
by applying Parish CIL funds

1

Details of other match funding secured

5

£500 (CAPC reserves)
&£2,000 Awards for All –
Total Score:

10/15

BC Officer Recommendation

Made by:CIL Officer_ Amanda Driver

Recommendation:

Approval

Reason for Recommendation:

Maintenance of Open Space/Community Facility/Leisure

CIL Spending Panel Decision
Decision Approved/Refused:

Reason for Refusal (if applicable):

Service Manager/Exec Director Sign off
Signature:

Date:

72

Dated: 25 May 2020

,.

73
'f

•

Ref 51 Great Massingham – Ducklings Pre-School Building Renovation Their Future, Our Future
Applicant

Ducklings Preschool Great Massingham

Description

The Preschool building is in urgent need of renovation including insulation ( there is
none) and cladding to the exterior walls to prevent further deterioration. The poor
condition of the building affects sustainability and viability for the future. The Project is to
renovate the building so that the youngest members of the community can continue to
receive local early years education that is part of the social infrastructure of the village.
Quality early years education supports better grades at GCSE and increased numbers
going to university with a predictable increase in lifetime earnings.
Great Massingham Preschool provides local employment, opportunities for volunteers to
gain employment skills or career development, work placements for level2,3, and
degree level promoting skills and educational attainment that directly relate to economic
development, and social mobility. Preschool families are supported and provided with
information and signposted to statutory, specialist and voluntary services that support
health and wellbeing. The Project supports growth in maintaining a community service
as part of the local infrastructure.
This application is made in liaison and with the full support of the Parish Council of
Great Massingham

Additional
Information

Supporting Information Submitted:
x Letters of support
o NCC Letter of Support
o GM School Letter of Support
o PC Letter of Support
x Community Questionnaire/Supporting Text
x Appeal Poster
x Supporting Photos
Preschool is a register charity, owns and insures the preschool building. Governance is
managed by a voluntary committee of trustees with representatives from parents, the
local school, and other members of the village so that the community is widely
represented. Preschool is registered with Ofsted and the Office of the Information
Commissioner. Preschool works to Policies and Procedures including Safeguarding and
Welfare,/Child Protection, Promoting British Values, Prevent, Diversity and Inclusion,
and Financial Governance. The Manager holds BA Hons Level 6, other staff hold a
range of qualifications to Level 3 with students on placement at Level 2 and 3. All staff
hold Paediatric First Aid and have attended other specialist training. Previous
staff/students have achieved full degree level. Volunteers have gained employment
skills or career development or enhanced wellbeing and valued status..

Amount of CIL funding requested: £6,960
Scoring Criteria
Amount of funding committed to the project by applying
organization own funding

% Matched/Notes
£2,000 – 28%

Score
5

Parish/Wards - Amount of funding committed to the project 0
by applying Parish CIL funds

1

Details of other match funding secured

2

£520 – 7%
Total Score:

BC Officer Recommendation
Recommendation:

Made by:CIL Officer_ Amanda Driver
Approval

74

8/15
Dated: 25 May 2020

Reason for Recommendation:

Community Facility

CIL Spending Panel Decision
Decision Approved/Refused:

Reason for Refusal (if applicable):

Service Manager/Exec Director Sign off
Signature:

Date:

75

76

77

Ref 53 Additions and improvements to Walpole Highway play area
Applicant

Walpole Highway Parish Council

Description

Addition and improvements to the play area to benefit young children in the
village.
New junior double swing and associated safer surfacing
New safer surfacing beneath existing toddler swing and slide
That in addition to the uploaded quotation for the new swing the new safer
surfacing for the slide is £2418 and the toddler swing £1674. Making a total
project cost of £8248.

Additional
Information

Supporting Information Submitted: Equipment Quote
The play area within the parish council owned playing field is very popular with mothers
and toddlers and children up to 14.
To date the parish council has funded all equipment. This is our first application for
external funding since the field was opened in the 1980's

Amount of CIL funding requested: £4,384
Scoring Criteria

% Matched/Notes

Score

£2,600 = 59%

5

Parish/Wards - Amount of funding committed to the project £1264 = 29%
by applying Parish CIL funds

2

Details of other match funding secured

0

Amount of funding committed to the project by applying
organization own funding

0
Total Score:

BC Officer Recommendation
Recommendation:

Made by:CIL Officer_ Amanda Driver
Approval

Reason for Recommendation:

Community Facility/Leisure/Open Space

CIL Spending Panel Decision
Decision Approved/Refused:

Reason for Refusal (if applicable):

Service Manager/Exec
Director Sign off
Signature:

Date:

78

7/15
Dated: 25 May 2020

Ref 54 Stoke Ferry - The Blue Bell Hub…the creation of an inclusive local community
Applicant

Stoke Ferry Community Enterprise Ltd

Description

To create an accessible, pleasant, and safe public place that offers good quality
experiences that make positive differences to people’s lives.
In practical terms, this will involve transforming accessibility in and around the Blue Bell
building. This will entail :
1. Installing an accessible unisex toilet and baby changing facilities.
2. Installing a new bespoke wheelchair-friendly, semi-automatic, entrance doorway.
3. Laying external wheelchair-accessible pathways to entrances and all parts of the
gardens and the car park.
4. Levelling and re-grassing the garden areas.
5. Purchasing a ceiling microphone hearing loop system

Additional
Information

Supporting Information Submitted:
x Business Plan
x SafeGuarding Policy
x Access Statement
x PC Letter of Support
The creation of an accessible public venue and gardens in the heart of Stoke
Ferry, along with a ceiling microphone hearing loop system, and baby changing
facilities will benefit our local community in at least the following seven ways:
1. It will increase the capacity of the existing village infrastructure for the local
population, and especially those with disabilities & mobility difficulties, and
others experiencing the effects of rural isolation (in particular: the elderly; those
who have been shielding; single persons; and parents with toddlers).
Examples of increasing capacity include:
• Providing opportunities for companionship to the lonely and isolated.
• Creating a warm, welcoming, and respectful venue offering a range of community
activities and services.
• Becoming a hub for information sharing and informed discussions.
• Allowing the provision of regular over-60s lunches and the establishment of Parent &
Toddler mornings; for both of which we have identified a high demand.
• Enabling ease of access into and around the premises and gardens for all visitors,
children, staff, and volunteers.
• Being a major factor in maintaining the renewed sense of place and pride, and
strength within our communities which has been established through the COVID
volunteer support networks created by those who know their vulnerable and isolated
neighbours.
2. A seven-day-a-week fully accessible hub-pub-café in the heart of Stoke
Ferry, also servicing surrounding villages, will meet the Post-COVID need for
the long-term rebuilding of local communities. It will be a major step forward in
the process of ‘building back’ stronger local communities.
4. Having a wheelchair-accessible doorway and toilet, together with the removal of
uneven surfaces and steep slopes in the garden areas along which it is impossible to
self-propel a manual wheelchair, or push a buggy with ease, will enabling the fullest
participation in the local services on offer.
5. Parents with toddlers will have a local public venue, within walking distance where
they can meet, play and socialise.
6. Fundamentally, it will be a tangible sign that all are welcome and be a source of pride
and respect amongst all members of our community

7. The resulting increased footfall and commercial activity in Stoke Ferry will help
stimulate local economic development, it will have a 'multifier effect'. In particular, the

79

Blue Bell will join and enhance the micro-commercial community along Lynn Road in
Stoke Ferry; Thus it will strengthen Stoke Ferry’s role as a Key Rural Service Centre in
the Wissey Valley as identified in the Borough Council's Local Plan.
Stoke Ferry Community Enterprise Ltd. is a Community Benefit Society run for the
benefit of the community at large, rather than just for members (shareholders) of the
Society.
The Blue Bell Hub is a community pub-café project that is owned and run by the
community. It strives to be a shining example of a hospitality-focused hub that is open
to people of all backgrounds. A place where families, friends, and groups of all shapes
and sizes can meet, connect, and feel supported, while all the while enjoying great
food, companionship, and entertainment.
. Should this application be successful, our Project Board will ensure that information
regarding progress will be supplied to yourselves on an ongoing basis until the
scheme has been completed and all CIL funding has been spent.
. Enterprise Ltd has carried out three surveys of all Stoke Ferry households. All our
surveys show a high demand for accessible services to be provided by the Blue Bell.
In particular, there was a clear call for meals for the elderly, a child-friendly
environment, and a community pub-café that will drive the village’s post-COVID
recovery program.Surplus revenue from the Blue Bell Hub will be channeled to local
community organisations.
Amount of CIL funding requested: £10,000
Scoring Criteria
% Matched/Notes
Score
Amount of funding committed to the project by applying
£7,480 – 75%
5
organization own funding
Parish/Wards - Amount of funding committed to the project 0
by applying Parish CIL funds
Details of other match funding secured
0

1
0
Total Score:

6/15

BC Officer Recommendation

Made by:CIL Officer_ Amanda Driver

Recommendation:

Approval

Reason for Recommendation:

Demonstration of fully constituted body with evidence of Parish Council
funding and Support.

CIL Spending Panel Decision
Decision Approved/Refused:

Reason for Refusal (if applicable):

Service Manager/Exec Director Sign off
Signature:

Date:

80

Dated: 25 May 2020

81

82

• Existing Garden Doorway to be removed and replaced

Left: Existing doorway to the garden and car park

Right: Existing doorway to toilet area

• A semi-automatic,
sliding
9
accessible door to be installed
with
• E self-binding gravel
pathways
to the garden and
x
carpark
i
s
t
i
n
g
g
a
r
d
e
n
83

8

•
•e
s
t
e
e
p

84

12

•k

85

•

Ref 57 Heacham - Open Air Skatepark
Applicant

Heacham Parish Council

Description

Our much used open air skatepark, installed at the recreation Ground some 15 years
ago, is now in need of refurbishment if it is to remain open and safe to use. The park
surface was originally laid in tarmac which is no longer fit for purpose as areas,
particularly at the bottom of the ramps, have lifted posing a potential risk to users (see
attached photos). This project is to resurface the ground between the ramps using a
particular 'power floated concrete' to provide a safe, smooth impact surface: external
contractors are needed for this work. The structure of the ramps remains sound and
Parish Council volunteers will clean and repaint the ramp surfaces. A managed team of
youngsters from Heacham are to undertake artwork on the side of the ramps.
Once project commences the refurbishment should take no longer than two weeks. The
associated artwork will follow the refurbishment and may take another month with an
anticipated completion date of no later than end November 2021.

Amount of CIL funding requested: £ 7,831.13
Scoring Criteria
Amount of funding committed to the project by applying
organization own funding

% Matched/Notes
£1,957.78 – 25%

Score
5

Parish/Wards - Amount of funding committed to the project 0
by applying Parish CIL funds

1

Details of other match funding secured

0

0
Total Score:

BC Officer Recommendation

Made by:CIL Officer_ Amanda Driver

Recommendation:

Approval

Reason for Recommendation:

Community Facility/Leisure

CIL Spending Panel Decision
Decision Approved/Refused:

Reason for Refusal (if applicable):

Service Manager/Exec Director Sign off
Signature:

Date:

86

6/15
Dated: 25 May 2020

Ref 58 Downham Market - High Street Lighting and Bunting
Applicant

Downham Market Town Council

Description

This application is seeking CIL Funding enhance our open spaces and to support
community facilities and activities.
Working with business owners and community groups we aim to brighten up our town
centre and its open spaces through lighting and bunting displays, making the area much
more attractive, and a beacon for visitors.
The bunting and lighting would be offered to business owners and all of the community
events organised, from the Music Festival to our new Christmas Market and many
others.
An attractive town centre will appeal to residents and tourist visitors, working with
business, community groups and the Borough we want Downham Market to grow as a
leisure destination. Whist this is a small step, it does fall in line with the broader plan the
Town Council have to regenerate the town, and to grow tourism which would have
benefits for the wider area. The town has suffered a number of business closures in the
last 12 months, many due to the Covid-19 pandemic and this scheme would bring new
life to the town and and make it a talking point, which in time will help lead to the
regeneration of our town centre. This has obvious benefits to the whole community,
whilst this is a small project, it does link in with the Town Councils wider aim of
promoting Downham Market as a great place to live and work and also part of our
longer term regeneration of the high street, and to make more use of our open spaces.
The lighting and Bunting would be used continuously to support both council and
community events.

Additional
Information

The High Street of Downham Market has suffered in recent years, as lots of high streets
have. Our plan is to make Downham Market an attractive place to visit be it for
shopping, tourism or work. The Town Council in partnership with community groups and
business owners will arrange a number of displays, we want to bring vibrancy and
colour back to the centre of the town. The purchase of Bunting and Lighting would allow
us to have a year round display of colour, and make these displays a real focal point.
These items would also be made available on loan to community groups and community
projects.
In turn it is hoped that this will translate into more people coming into the town centre,
bringing an economic and feel good boost. It also will help support a number of our
community groups and projects and making much more use of our town centre open
spaces, with a series of events with this backdrop of colour.

Amount of CIL funding requested: £5,000
Scoring Criteria
Amount of funding committed to the project by applying
organization own funding

% Matched/Notes
0

Score
0

Parish/Wards - Amount of funding committed to the project 0
by applying Parish CIL funds

1

Details of other match funding secured

0

0
Total Score:

BC Officer Recommendation

Made by:CIL Officer_ Amanda Driver

87

1/15

Dated: 25 May 2020

Recommendation:

Partial Approval of Street Lighting Only

Reason for Recommendation:

Open Space/Leisure
Officer does not consider bunting to constitute infrastructure to support
development

CIL Spending Panel Decision
Decision Approved/Refused:

Reason for Refusal (if applicable):

Service Manager/Exec Director Sign off
Signature:

Date:

88

Ref 59 Downham Market Info Signs
Applicant

Downham Market Town Council

Description

Downham Market Town Council intends to have some branded signs produced, these
will be placed in key areas around the town including the railway station an integral part
of our plan to grow visitor numbers and increase town centre footfall. By raising
awareness and highlight all of the leisure and tourist opportunities available within the
town. Its important that we promote the town, and work with the community on this plan.
There are a number of community groups and businesses who are very keen to see the
visitor numbers to Downham Market grow, this small step is but one aspect of a larger
plan to make Downham Market and its historic town centre and thriving market a place
people will want to visit. an increase in leisure visitors has benefits not only for the town
but the wider area.
The Town Council would be responsible for maintaining the signage and are only
seeking a grant to cover the purchase.

Additional
Information

This application is seeking CIL funding to support new community activities, and to help
enhance our open spaces through linking our transport hubs to drive positive change to
the town centre and beyond.
through a number of events whilst Downham Market is well served by a good transport
links including a mainline train station, we plan to make visitors aware of what is
available just a short walk from the railway station and our town centre carparks. The
intention is to use the grant to purchase bespoke signs and information boards which
will be used at key locations around the town to inform and direct visitors to the centre of
the town. The historic railway station would be one element of this scheme which aims
to bring new visitors and repeating visitors into the town, helping to regenerate the high
street which has suffered in recent times, and notably has seen a number of business
closures because of the Covid-19 pandemic.
Using this community transport hub to help bring investment into the area through an
increase in leisure visitors has wide reaching implications for the area. In conjunction
with other ongoing plans we aim to greatly increase our use our town centre open
spaces with a programme of Pop Up events from street food to a youth market. The
signs we produce would be used throughout the year highlighting the Best of Downham
Market and what it offers.
This project is just one part of the Town Councils plan to increase the profile and footfall
into the town, working in conjunction with some of our community groups like the
Downham Heritage Society, we aim to deliver more leisure related activities. Supporting
the wider community, increasing awareness and making Downham Market a destination
that people want to visit and spend leisure time in. Increased leisure visitor numbers will
have a far reaching impact for both the community groups involved and the businesses
that directly and indirectly support leisure outputs.
This signage will very much help us achieve the aim, and bring wider economic and
business opportunities to the town, benefitting the wider community with a reinvigorated
high street and town centre.
Amount of CIL funding requested: £6,500
Scoring Criteria
% Matched/Notes Score
Amount of funding committed to the project by applying
0
0
organization own funding
Parish/Wards - Amount of funding committed to the project by applying 0
Parish CIL funds
Details of other match funding secured
BC Officer Recommendation

0
Total Score:

Made by:CIL Officer_ Amanda Driver

89

1
0
1/15
Dated: 25 May 2020

Recommendation:

Approval

Reason for Recommendation:

Leisure

CIL Spending Panel Decision
Decision Approved/Refused:

Reason for Refusal (if applicable):

Service Manager/Exec Director Sign off
Signature:

Date:

90

Ref 60 Gayton - Study of the stormwater and foul drainage systems in Gayton & Gayton
Applicant

Gayton and Gayton Thorpe Parish Council

Description

Gayton and Gayton Thorpe have experienced severe foul and surface water flooding for
many years. This application is to commission a study to investigate the root causes and
the benefit to the community is that that is the first step towards solving the dreadful
flooding and sewerage problems in our Parish for the long term.
The Parish Council is prepared to match fund 50% of the £3,000 total cost but would
appreciate as much support as possible to start this project so that we can take steps to
alleviate flooding and sewerage problems in Gayton and Gayton Thorpe.
Supporting Information Submitted:
x Survey Quote
x Drainage Report_Charles Muff (Extract below)
x Drainage Report_AW Beale (Extract Below)
x Cllr Gidney Letter of Support

Amount of CIL funding requested: £3,000
Scoring Criteria
Amount of funding committed to the project by applying
organization own funding

% Matched/Notes
£1,500 – 50%

Score
5

Parish/Wards - Amount of funding committed to the project 0
by applying Parish CIL funds

1

Details of other match funding secured

0

0
Total Score:

BC Officer Recommendation

Made by:CIL Officer_ Amanda Driver

Recommendation:

Approval

Reason for Recommendation:

Community Facilities

CIL Spending Panel Decision
Decision Approved/Refused:

Reason for Refusal (if applicable):

Service Manager/Exec Director Sign off
Signature:

Date:

91

6/15
Dated: 25 May 2020

Flooded garden in Winch Road

Flooded garden in Winch Road

92
Flooded garden in Winch Road

Flooded garden in Winch Road

93

Site of Rampant Horse housing development for Freebridge taken in February 2021

Flooding from manhole ---Springvale

Sewage flooding ---Springvale

Sewage overflow—Springvale

Sewage overflow—Springvale

94
Examples of blocked road drains

The following photographs show gardens flooded with sewage which by anyone’s standards is disgusting!

8 photos of residents gardens flooded with sewage (2 gardens are shown of adjoining properties)

95

96
The problem shown above is well known to Anglian water who at times ofheavy rainfall use contract tankers to remove excess effluent from the system at
various points in our village as well as in Grimston and Pott Row. The excess effluent is removed by tanker direct to Kings Lynn for processing.

Ref 61 King’s Lynn - TS Vancouver Structural Improvements
Applicant

King’s Lynn Sea Cadets

Description

TS Vancouver is a listed building which is falling into disrepair. We desperately need
funding to replace the windows and update the classrooms to make the environment
more suitable to the learning needs of the Sea Cadets, and Junior Cadets. We are an
Inclusive organisation and aim to meet the needs of all our Cadets. This means that we
accept all and adapt to allow equality for all.
The continued development of TS Vancouver dovetails with the Borough Council of
Kings Lynn and West Norfolk Local Plan for providing a strong and healthy society.
Encouraging the next generation to spend their time learning useful skills and
maintaining its historical Naval links.
The building is situated on the South Quay of Kings Lynn is a newly developed area.
The building is a listed building so the cost of the upkeep is higher than a modern build.
Without the investment in the infrastructure of the Sea Cadets building the future of the
organisation is significantly jeopardised which will have an impact on the young people
of Kings Lynn.
Supporting Information Submitted: Door Quote

Additional
Information

Kings Lynn is the home of Sea Cadets TS Vancouver (training ship). The Sea Cadets
help teenagers and young people to stretch themselves and become the best they can
be. We know what that takes because we've been doing it for over 160 years. The
pressures that young people face is ever-changing, but what remains constant is that
the teenage years can be turbulent. Independence is exciting, but also daunting and the
Sea Cadets helps coach young people though these difficult years to develop well
adjusted, experienced adults. Now more than ever we need to provide engaging and
exciting opportunities for our young people and continue to support their development.
For many years TS Vancouver has been providing opportunities for young people to
learn skills for life through a maritime based curriculum. Unlike the other Youth Armed
Forces, Sea Cadets are not funded by the Royal Navy, all our funding is sought from the
community.
In the 2018 Impact Study it was reported that as an Inclusive Organisation we reach
young people from the poorest of backgrounds and offer them opportunities that would
not otherwise be available to them. Participation in structured youth activities at
uniformed youth clubs has been associated with positive outcomes for young people in
previous research (Sea Cadets Impact Report, 2018), however, research also suggests
young people who engage in these activities tend to come from more advantaged
backgrounds. This suggests that if Sea Cadets continues to be effective at extending its
reach to young people from all backgrounds, then it will have greater positive impact
Sea Cadets aims to help young people achieve in education, employment and in longerterm mental and physical wellbeing and community engagement. The mental wellbeing
of young people is high on the national agenda following the disruption of two academic
years (YoungMinds). Children have missed learning and are now feeling the pressure to
bridge the gaps in their education. At Sea Cadets we have continued to support our
Cadets and Junior Cadets through online activities and are in the enviable position of
being able to ‘pick up, where we left off’ which will be comforting and familiar for our
cadets and we hope to be able to enable them to experience some success as a result.
To be able to continue to give our young people access to the open water and the
vessels they need to enable them to reach their full potential and gain qualifications TS
Vancouver needs to upgrade their fleet of 2 x sailing boats.

Amount of CIL funding requested: £ 9,208.51
Scoring Criteria
Amount of funding committed to the project by applying
organization own funding

97

% Matched/Notes
0

Score
0

Parish/Wards - Amount of funding committed to the project 0
by applying Parish CIL funds

1

Details of other match funding secured

0

0
Total Score:

BC Officer Recommendation

Made by:CIL Officer_ Amanda Driver

Recommendation:

Approval

Reason for Recommendation:

Community Facility/Leisure

CIL Spending Panel Decision
Decision Approved/Refused:

Reason for Refusal (if applicable):

Service Manager/Exec Director Sign off
Signature:

Date:

98

1/15
Dated: 25 May 2020

Ref 62 Gayton - Install French drain beside Skate Park
Applicant

Gayton and Gayton Thorpe Parish Council

Description

Installation of a French drain beside the skate park ramp in the playing field in Gayton
will stop flooding onto the skate park will ensure that it is safe for the young people in
the village to use. It will also stop water ingress which may cause damage in the long
term.
A puddle builds up beside the skate park and the project is to install a French drain to
stop this and ensure the skate park is available and safe to use at all times.
Supporting Information Submitted: NCC Highway Quote

Amount of CIL funding requested: £1,050
Scoring Criteria
Amount of funding committed to the project by applying
organization own funding

% Matched/Notes
£630 – 60%

Score
5

Parish/Wards - Amount of funding committed to the project 0
by applying Parish CIL funds

1

Details of other match funding secured

0

0
Total Score:

BC Officer Recommendation

Made by:CIL Officer_ Amanda Driver

Recommendation:

Approval

Reason for Recommendation:

Open Space/Leisure

CIL Spending Panel Decision
Decision Approved/Refused:

Reason for Refusal (if applicable):

Service Manager/Exec Director Sign off
Signature:

Date:

99

6/15
Dated: 25 May 2020

Ref 63 Gayton - Grimston Road Trod
Applicant

Gayton and Gayton Thorpe Parish Council

Description

A trod will be created on the other side of road, with kind permission and support of the
local landowner which will provide safe access to the Grimston Road bus stop now that
the current access across a resident's garden, is no longer available. The trod will
require a hedge to be moved and replaced and the trod will be laid in the space created.
Historically a parishioner has provided a path across the bottom of her garden to allow
the community to walk safely to the bus stop in Grimston Road. This permission has
been withdrawn and this project is to provide a safe alternative route which allows
parishioners to continue to access this bus stop.

Supporting Information Submitted: NCC Highway Quote
Amount of CIL funding requested: £2,050
Scoring Criteria
% Matched/Notes
Amount of funding committed to the project by applying
£2050 – 100%
organization own funding

Score
5

Parish/Wards - Amount of funding committed to the project 0
by applying Parish CIL funds

1

Details of other match funding secured

0

0
Total Score:

BC Officer Recommendation

Made by:CIL Officer_ Amanda Driver

Recommendation:

Approval

Reason for Recommendation:

Open Space/Community Facility

CIL Spending Panel Decision
Decision Approved/Refused:

Reason for Refusal (if applicable):

Service Manager/Exec Director Sign off
Signature:

Date:

100

6/15
Dated: 25 May 2020

Ref 66 Pentney - Narborough Road Culvert (Grid Ref. TF73501375)
Applicant

Pentney Parish Council

Description

Request is for the repair and replacement/enlargement of the original pipe in a culvert
under Narborough Road, Pentney
An estimated cost of doing the work has been verbally received from the Highways
engineer, Andrew Wallace, at £8500
Pentney village has in recent years suffered from winter flooding. This last year has
been particularly bad with a number of properties being unable to effectively use thier
toilets because of the high water levels. Roads have been flooded for many days at a
time with one house actually being flooded. The Parish Council has formed a small
working party of volunteers, from the village, to examine the risks of flooding and
drought issues for the future
The Parish Council has already commisioned a Dyke Survey alongside Low Road and
Abbey Road (£2750) and are actively in discussion with land owners to rectify pinch
points along the major dyke and ditches.

Amount of CIL funding requested: £4,500
Scoring Criteria
Amount of funding committed to the project by applying
organization own funding

% Matched/Notes
£4,000 – 88%

Score
5

Parish/Wards - Amount of funding committed to the project 0
by applying Parish CIL funds

1

Details of other match funding secured

0

0
Total Score:

BC Officer Recommendation

Made by:CIL Officer_ Amanda Driver

Recommendation:

Approval

Reason for Recommendation:

Open Space/Community Facility

CIL Spending Panel Decision
Decision Approved/Refused:

Reason for Refusal (if applicable):

Service Manager/Exec Director Sign off
Signature:

Date:

101

6/15
Dated: 25 May 2020

Ref 67 Watlington - Warren Close Play Area Slide
Applicant

Watlington Parish Council

Description

In the late 1970’s/1980’s the Warren Close Play Area Association (WCPAA) installed a
slide at the Warren Close Play Area. Sadly, in 2003, this was removed after being
deemed unsuitable and unsafe. Regrettably this has never been replaced, as the
Council has not been able to finance one.
The Warren Close Play Area is an open green space which houses a small number of
play equipment designed for young children. It is a secure, popular site for families. The
Play Area is shielded on three sides by very tall hedges (one side is currently under
construction for housing development and the hedge on that boundary has been
removed by the developers). Noise and disturbance from children playing on this site is
minimal and is not detrimental to the occupiers of surrounding properties. The site is
owned and maintained by the Parish Council; fortnightly inspections are carried out and
a full annual inspection takes place annually in April by the Play Inspection Company.
Supporting Information Submitted: Play Equipment Quote

Additional
Information

Open space and recreational facilities are a key planning factor in the National Planning
Policy Framework for both new and existing sites, as they contribute to the health, wellbeing and social interaction for both children and parents. A double width slide on this
site would provide enhanced vitality to the play area and encourage more children to
use the facilities, particularly as this slide would enable their parents to use it with them
Extensive research of various types of slides and gradients have been carried out and
verbal consultations with parents have been undertaken. Quotations have been sought
and the best value/most commensurate scheme has been approved by the Council.

Amount of CIL funding requested: £1,389.59
Scoring Criteria
Amount of funding committed to the project by applying
organization own funding

% Matched/Notes
£1389.59 – 100%

Parish/Wards - Amount of funding committed to the project 0
by applying Parish CIL funds
Details of other match funding secured

0

BC Officer Recommendation

Total Score:
Made by:CIL Officer_ Amanda Driver

Recommendation:

Approval

Reason for Recommendation:

Leisure/Community Facility

CIL Spending Panel Decision
Decision Approved/Refused:

Reason for Refusal (if applicable):

Service Manager/Exec Director Sign off
Signature:

Date:

102

Score
5
1
0
6/15
Dated: 25 May 2020

103

104

Ref 68 Old Hunstanton - Better Parking Scheme
Applicant

Old Hunstanton Parish Council

Description

To install double yellow lines, waiting restrictions and limited time waiting bays in various
suitable locations in Old Hunstanton.
Old Hunstanton community, being on the coast and seeing considerable increases in
visitor numbers, are experiencing considerable parking problems throughout most of the
year. We have consulted with N.C.C. Highways and they have carried out a prefeasibility study for a
better parking scheme in Old Hunstanton. This scheme allows for some visitor parking
but with consideration for the residents.
Supporting Information Submitted: Feasibility Layout Drawing

Amount of CIL funding requested: £4,000
Scoring Criteria
Amount of funding committed to the project by applying
organization own funding

% Matched/Notes
£6,000 – 150%

Score
5

Parish/Wards - Amount of funding committed to the project 0
by applying Parish CIL funds

1

Details of other match funding secured

0

0
Total Score:

BC Officer Recommendation

Made by:CIL Officer_ Amanda Driver

Recommendation:

Approval

Reason for Recommendation:

Leisure/Community Facility

CIL Spending Panel Decision
Decision Approved/Refused:

Reason for Refusal (if applicable):

Service Manager/Exec Director Sign off
Signature:

Date:

105

6/15
Dated: 25 May 2020

106

Ref 69 Pott Row - Holly Meadows Cycle Track
Applicant

Holly Meadows School

Description

A cycling, walking and running track around the perimeter of the school field that would
be accessible to both school pupils and community groups. The track would measure
500m by 2m and would encourage activity, resulting in mental and physical health
benefits.
We would like to create a 500m by 2m cycle track on the school field that would be
accessible to pupils at Holly Meadows School as part of curricular and extra curricular
activities. The track would also be available to our local community groups. The track
will benefit the children as they will be able to develop their fitness, off road cycling
skills, as well as safe cycling skills that are transferrable to road cycling.
Children between 4 and 11 at Holly Meadows school have access to bicycles and
dedicated cycling lessons both in curriculum time and after school clubs. We have a
British Cycling trained member of staff at our school and deliver Balance-ability (learning
to ride) as well as 'Go-Ride' and 'Bike-ability' for other age groups and abilities.
Due to the nature of the local roads, parents with young children are often reluctant to
participate in road cycling as they don't feel that their child would have the skills to cycle
safely. Children (and some adults) would benefit from the opportunity to develop their
confidence, balance and safe cycling skills in an off road environment such as this,
before attempting to cycle on the road.
With a track, we would be able to extend our provision to competitions within school and
also with other schools. The West Norfolk School Sports Partnership have confirmed
that they would support us would and would also be keen to use this facility for inter
school competitions.
Other schools could access our facility, along with community groups such as Scouts,
Cubs, Guides and Brownies, Holly Meadows Youth FC and Kings Lynn Cycling Club.
Other community groups may wish to access this facility too.
In addition to cycling on this track, we would use it for our Daily Mile running and walking
for all children. Science has long proven the importance of being physically active in
helping our bodies and minds stay healthy. A cycle/ walking and running track would be
an excellent addition to this local community of Pott Row, Grimston, Roydon, Congham
and would contribute so positively to the recovery of health and wellbeing post covid.

Additional
Information

Supporting Information Submitted: PC Letter of Support
'The Parish Council would very pleased to pledge up to £1000.00 towards the project
The Council considers that the idea is rather inspired and is particularly pleased that it
will be multi-functional and can be used for both bicycles and the morning mile. If there
is also a way in which the track can be used by other local community groups, the
Council would very much welcome this broader use'.

Amount of CIL funding requested: £10,000
Scoring Criteria
Amount of funding committed to the project by applying
organization own funding

% Matched/Notes
£1,000 – 10%

Score
2

Parish/Wards - Amount of funding committed to the project 0
by applying Parish CIL funds

1

Details of other match funding secured

0

0
Total Score:

BC Officer Recommendation
Recommendation:

Made by:CIL Officer_ Amanda Driver
Approval

107

3/15
Dated: 25 May 2020

Reason for Recommendation:

Leisure/Open Space/Community Facility

CIL Spending Panel Decision
Decision Approved/Refused:

Reason for Refusal (if applicable):

Service Manager/Exec Director Sign off
Signature:

Date:

108

Ref 70 Ingoldisthorpe - The Old Post Office Hub (TOPOH)
Applicant

PlayFit

Description

Provide a modern space for families and those from the local community to meet, talk
and unwind, in addition to having the opportunity to take part in workshops on a wide
variety of subjects from mental health to specific classes for physical health such as
yoga and the barefoot movement. The vision is for the original Old Post Office building
to eventually become a non-resident building, housing a number of services and
amenities for the Community such as a Post Office, barbers and beauty salon. This
project is the first step in making this a reality, utilising outside space and washroom
facilities that already exist – albeit for the owners of the property.

Additional
Information

The hub could be up and running from as little as 4-6 weeks after funding is secured, to
allow time for delivery and installation of doors to separate the private residence,
change of use applications to be submitted and approved and equipment such as a
coffee machine & coffee grinder to be ordered and supplied. Equipment for physical
activity classes such as yoga mats, pull-up bars / monkey bars to be ordered, installed
and delivered.
Supporting Information Submitted: Site Photo
The Old Post Office (TOPO) in Ingoldisthorpe sits at the heart of the small, but rapidly
expanding, Village and became a private residence almost 25 years ago. Ingoldisthorpe
Village lost the 'new' site of the Post Office more recently and it is now a hairdressers.
Although the mobile Post Office visits the Village once per week (outside the Village
Hall) and brings with it a few other necessities that can be bought, Ingoldisthorpe lacks a
modern community space, shop and cafe. This has been more evident over the past
year with the covid-19 pandemic as places such as the Village Hall and Social Club
have been in lockdown and resources are limited regarding their re-opening and what is
'put on' there on a regular basis. Even so, these existing buildings do not attract a wide
variety of the local populace for varying reasons, by creating TOPOH I think
Ingoldisthorpe can finally have a space the Community deserves and needs.
This project is the first phase in the vision to turn TOPO into a non-residential
community benefit building. Initially, at least monthly events will take place, be they a
guest chef hosting a supperclub, a coffee morning, a parent, carer & toddler morning or
a yoga retreat. To do this, the residence needs to apply for change of use, obtain the
appropriate insurances, make minor adjustments to the interior of the property to ensure
wash facilities, baby changing etc. are accessible & do not infringe on the private
residence from a security point of view and for the covered outdoor space to have doors
to ensure, in the event of another pandemic / any form of lockdown in the future, well be
ventilated whilst still offering a warm outside space. Tables, chairs, crockery, additional
physical activity equipment also need to be purchased.
£15k – Funding by the current owners ALREADY spent on washroom, baby change,
kitchen facilities, outdoor space including an outdoor room, patio and play area that the
owners are wishing to open up to the Community.

Amount of CIL funding requested: £10,000
Scoring Criteria
Amount of funding committed to the project by applying
organization own funding

% Matched/Notes
0

Score
0

Parish/Wards - Amount of funding committed to the project 0
by applying Parish CIL funds

1

Details of other match funding secured

5

£15,000 – 150%
Total Score:

BC Officer Recommendation

Made by:CIL Officer_ Amanda Driver

109

6/15
Dated: 25 May 2020

Recommendation:

Approval

Reason for Recommendation:

Community Facility/Leisure

CIL Spending Panel Decision
Decision Approved/Refused:

Reason for Refusal (if applicable):

Service Manager/Exec Director Sign off
Signature:

Date:

110

111

Ref 71 - Lynnsport - Group Cycling Studio Development
Applicant

Alive West Norfolk

Description

The current group cycling studio at Lynnsport holds 18 bikes and group cycling classes
are regularly at capacity with people on a waiting list or disappointed further that they
can not get into session despite putting on more sessions. This project is looking to
renovate an area of Lynnsport to increase the capacity of classes to 35 and provide a
modern group cycling experience with interactive onscreen technology. The technology
introduces gamification to the sessions and allow sessions to take place without an
instructor at off-peak times or during instructor illness.

Additional
Information

Supporting Information Submitted: Virtual Image of Studio
Currently we are not able to meet the demands of the popularity of Group Cycling
Classes and this investment would help us to double our current capacity and provide a
modern Group Cycling Studio unlike any others in West Norfolk.
Alive West Norfolk and the BCKLWN have already allocated capital funds to replace the
existing group cycling bikes. This funding would enable renovation of the prosed studio
to house the bikes.

Amount of CIL funding requested: £10,000
Scoring Criteria
Amount of funding committed to the project by applying
organization own funding

% Matched/Notes
0

Score
0

Parish/Wards - Amount of funding committed to the project 0
by applying Parish CIL funds

1

Details of other match funding secured

5

£35,000 – 350%
Total Score:

BC Officer Recommendation

Made by:CIL Officer_ Amanda Driver

Recommendation:

Approval

Reason for Recommendation:

Leisure/Community Facility

CIL Spending Panel Decision
Decision Approved/Refused:

Reason for Refusal (if applicable):

Service Manager/Exec Director Sign off
Signature:

Date:

112

6/15
Dated: 25 May 2020

Ref 72 Clenchwarton Play Area Renovation
Applicant

Clenchwarton Parish Council

Description

The project proposes to renovate the existing play area to provide an improved range
and quality of play equipment for ages 0-15 years to serve the village and neighbouring
villages. The project also aims to improve accessibility and sustainable travel options by
improved cycle storage provision and park access for wheelchairs and pushchairs. The
project can be scaled depending on level of funding secured.
The project is to renovate the existing play area which is over 20 years old and in poor
condition. The range of equipment is very limited for the under 16 age population that
the village serves. The project will benefit the local community by providing upgraded
play equipment, access and cycling parking provision.

Additional
Information

Supporting Information Submitted:
x PC Letter of Support
x Site Plan Drawing
x
A Public Consultation Survey was carried out in January-February 2021 and received
185 responses. The results also showed;
• each respondent had on average 3 children
• Respondent’s had children in the following age groups 0-4 years 49%, 5-10 years
75%, 11-16 30%.
• 96% said they feel the play area needs upgrading
• 82% said limited range of equipment was a barrier to using the play area, followed by
concerns about safety (22%),
• Equipment that respondent’s most wanted to see (in order of highest response); Slide,
zip slide, climbing net, sea saw and swing seat.
A letter of support has also been provided by the Parish Council,

Amount of CIL funding requested: £10,000
Scoring Criteria
Amount of funding committed to the project by applying
organization own funding

% Matched/Notes
0

Score
1

Parish/Wards - Amount of funding committed to the project 0
by applying Parish CIL funds

1

Details of other match funding secured

5

£23,033 – 230%

BC Officer Recommendation
Recommendation:

Total Score:
/15
Made by:CIL Officer_ Amanda Driver
Dated: 25 May 2020
Approval

Reason for Recommendation:

Community Facility/Leisure/Open Space

CIL Spending Panel Decision
Decision Approved/Refused:

Reason for Refusal (if applicable):

Service Manager/Exec Director Sign off
Signature:

Date:

113

8'-0"
8'
0"
4'-6"
4'4'
-6"

2'-0"

OIL
OI
L

Storage
Stor
St
orag
age
e
Container
Cont
Co
ntai
aine
nerr

-"
0
'
1
2

Memorial Hall

2'-4"
2'2'
-4"

114
2'-4"

Car Park
Secure Play
Area

Phase 5.1 – Improve Use of Outdoor

SCALE

1: 100

Community Projects
Ref No
31
38
40
45
55
56
64

Project Description
Alive Leisure - Wellness Hub
Burnham Overy Village Hall (INVALID)
BCKLWN – Heacham Toilets
Barroway Drove Foot Path Extension
West Winch Skatepark
Tilney All Saints - Millennium Green Play Area
Clenchwarton Pre-School – Project Panda

Community Project Reports & Scoring – FY 20/21
Project Criteria
As detailed in the CIL Governance Document FY20/21, the project must meet the following criteria:

x

Is this project necessary to support local growth?

x

Is the total cost of the project between 10k and 50k?

x

Has match funding and financial commitment been secured?

x

Is the project deliverable within 1-5 years?

Current Scope for funding:

x

Education

x

Health or

x

Economic Development.

Scoring Overview
Evidence of Need
No new dwellings identified in the BCKLWN
Local Plan:

1 – 49 = 1 Point
50 – 99 = 2 Points
100-149 = 3 Points
150 – 199 4 Points
200+ =, 5 Points

Out of 5:

What evidence do you have that local people
support your project?

Petitions
Community Consultation Outcomes Letters of
support from new/existing users Fundraising
Initiatives

Out of 5

How does the project contribute to the delivery
of the objectives and policies of the BCKLWN
Local Plan?

1 point per Local Plan Objective/Policy

Out of 10

Stakeholder Support

115

Please provide details of support for
the project from other stakeholders
or organisations

Parish Council Support Borough
Council Support County Council
Support Service Provider Support
Other Stakeholder Support

Out of 5

Finance and Deliverability
Amount of funding committed to the
project by applying organization own
funding (e.g. Parish precept).

1 – 5% = 1 Point
5 – 10% = 2 Points
11 – 15% = 3 Points
16 – 20% = 4 Points
21+% = 5 Points
Parish/Wards - Amount of funding committed to No CIL = 1 Point 10 – 25% =
the project by applying Parish CIL funds
1 Point
25 – 45% = 2 Points
45 – 65% = 3 Points
65 – 85% = 4 Points
85 – 100% = 5 Points
1 – 5% = 1 Point
Details of other match funding secured
5 – 10% = 2 Points
(amount and organisation providing funds)
11 – 15% = 3 Points
16 – 20% = 4 Points
21+% = 5 Points
Start date:
Please indicate the approximate start
0 – 6months = 5 Point
and finish dates of the project. (must
6 – 9 Months = 4 Points
be
9 – 12 Months = 3 Points
deliverable within 1-5 years of application)
12 – 18 Months = 2 Points
18 Months + = 1 Point

116

Out of 5

Out of 5

Out of 5

Out of 5

Ref 31 Lynnsport - Alive Wellness Hub
Applicant
Description

Additional
Information

Alive West Norfolk
The Alive Wellness Hub will be a new facility developed at Lynnsport with specialist
equipment to support customers with a range of medical issues including long term
health conditions. The equipment will adapt to individuals needs and measure, monitor
and manage their progress. The Wellness Hub will also have a physical activity health
professional who will receive referrals from the NHS and health partners and triage
patients on referral to the Wellness Hub. From there each patient will receive a physical
activity prescription which may be within the Wellness Hub, Alive Leisure centres or
community based activity. The Wellness Hub will be able to run specialist group classes
for Cardiac Rehabilitation or Cancer Rehabilitation. The Wellness Hub will track
individuals progress, feedback to health professionals and implement intervention
measures for those who's adherence to physical activity declines. The Wellness Hub will
also measure individual progress, programmes and intervention techniques to attract
investment for the future and strength relationships with the NHS. We are working with
the NHS, Queen Elizabeth Hospital and Active Norfolk to develop a system based
approach across health services for exercise referral and the Wellness Hub would be a
key part of this service. We are already working towards a Cancer Rehab pathway with
these partners which we hope to being soon and with the same partners looking at a
longer term sustainable view of exercise referral.
Supporting Information Submitted: NHS Letter of Support
Evidence of Need
We have worked in partnership with the NHS, Queen Elizabeth Hospital and Active
Norfolk to review physical activity and health requirements of West Norfolk and how we
may develop our exercise referral offer to be a more integrated wider system approach
with the NHS and key stakeholders. West Norfolk has high levels of obesity, poor
mental health, cardiovascular disease and diabetes. Data has been collected from
Norfolk Insight, ONS, NHS Health profiles and Sports England Active People surveys.
Local Support
We have a number of residents who come to use Alive facilities who are referred to their
GP's before they can commence exercise. Conversely we have a number of people who
are referred to our Wellness Programme from health partners signed up to our scheme.
This benefits a small proportion of residents and after consultation with NHS partners a
wider system based approach where all health professional have the ability to refer
patients will have a significant impact for the borough. We are already working towards
a Cancer Rehabilitation model with the NHS which would form one element of this
programme.
Meeting Local Plan
This project gets right to the heart of the BCKLWN tackling inequalities and supporting
residents to have happy, healthy and fulfilling lives. With the aim to improve physical
and mental health amongst residents and remove barriers of access and affordability
there are much wider benefits which will include resident living more fulling lives in good
health, being active, engaging in cultural and arts activities and making West Norfolk a
more vibrant place to live.
Supporting Information
With West Norfolk having high levels of deprivation the associated health profiles for
these areas demonstrate high obesity levels, high poor mental health, high levels of
cardiovascular disease and areas of high rates of diabetes. The Wellness Hub with
backing from the NHS will look to reduce inequalities and improve access and
affordability for those who need it and currently can not afford it. It is hoped that a
successful Wellness Hub and NHS partnership will help alleviate the burden on the NHS
and contribute to residents starting their journey to healthier more active lifestyles.

Amount of CIL funding requested: £50,000

117

Scoring Criteria

% Matched/Notes

Score

Evidence of Need
No new dwellings identified in the BCKLWN Local 200+
Plan:

5

Evidence of local people support your project?

5
QEH, Norfolk Insight, ONS, NHS
Health profiles and Sports England
Active People surveys

How does the project contribute to the delivery of
the objectives and policies of the BCKLWN Local
Plan?

DM9, CS14

2

Evidence of stakeholder support
Details of support for the project from other stakeholders Partnership with the NHS, Queen
or organisations
Elizabeth Hospital and Active

4

Norfolk, BCKLWN

Finance and Deliverability
Amount of funding committed to the project by applying £30,000 – 60%
organization own funding

5

Amount of funding committed to the project by applying 0
Parish CIL funds

1

Details of other match funding secured

0

0

Approximate start and finish dates of the project. (must 6 Months
be deliverable within 1-5 years of application)

5
Total Score:

BC Officer Recommendation

Made by:CIL Officer_ Amanda Driver

Recommendation:

Approval

Reason for Recommendation:

Health

CIL Spending Panel Review
Spending Panel Recommendation/Comments

BCKLWN Management Team Decision
Decision Approved/Refused:

Reason for Refusal (if applicable):

Service Manager/Exec Director Sign off
Signature:

Date:

118

27/45
Dated: 25 May 2020

Ref 38 Burnham Overy Village Hall – New Windows
Applicant
Description

Additional
Information

Burnham Overy Village Hall
To replace all the old single-glazed windows with aesthetically similar but up-to-date
hardwood double-glazed windows to enable the Village Hall to be used throughout
the winter months (not just summer), make it a viable proposition for solar, airsource or latest Eco energy option in the future (which it is not at present) and
become a thriving hub for the village throughout the year - not just during the spring
and summer months.
Supporting Information Submitted: Village Hall Photo
The best quote for Supply of windows primed and fixed on site is £42,424 not including
the leadwork (£1,500) + VAT
Two undercoats and one topcoat to all new windows inside and out based on past
quotes £10,400.

Amount of CIL funding requested: £35,000.00
Scoring Criteria

% Matched/Notes

Score

Evidence of Need
No new dwellings identified in the BCKLWN Local 1 dwelling identified in current
Plan:
Local Plan
Evidence of local people support your project?
No Evidence

1

How does the project contribute to the delivery of
the objectives and policies of the BCKLWN Local
Plan?

No Evidence

0

No Evidence

0

0

Evidence of stakeholder support
Details of support for the project from other
stakeholders or organisations

Finance and Deliverability
Amount of funding committed to the project by applying 0
organization own funding

0

Amount of funding committed to the project by applying 0
Parish funds

0

Details of other match funding secured

5

Lennox Hannay Trust £5,000 &
Burnham Overy Village Hall
£15,000 = 57%

Approximate start and finish dates of the project. (must 1 Year
be deliverable within 1-5 years of application)

2
Total Score:

BC Officer Recommendation

Made by:CIL Officer_ Amanda Driver

119

8/45

Dated: 24/06/2021

Recommendation:

Reason for Recommendation:

INVALID – Refusal. May consider allocating £10,000 as a local
project

x
x
x

Does not meet current Community Project Criteria.
No evidence of local/stakeholder support
No evidence that village hall committee is a constituted
body.

CIL Spending Panel Review
Spending Panel Recommendation/Comments

BCKLWN Management Team Decision
Decision Approved/Refused:

Reason for Refusal (if applicable):

Service Manager/Exec Director Sign off
Signature:

Date:

120

Ref 40 Heacham Toilets
Applicant
Description

BCKLWN
Replace the existing, not fit for purpose toilets at Heacham Beach. The project will
incorporate work to design the building to ensure it fit's in with the local beach habitat.
The project has been passed to the corporate project team to progress. Work is now
starting on finalising costs and building the specification of the new building.

Additional
Information

Supporting Information Submitted: PC Email Confirmation of Support
Evidence of Need
The existing toilet block facilities are in a poor state of repair and no longer fit for
purpose. CIL funding is requested to contribute towards a capital project to build a new
toilet block in line with the increased usage and higher expectation of customers as
more people are visiting the beach due to the impact of COVID on travel abroad and the
increase of 'staycations'. The existing toilets are not appropriate to the need for hygiene
and cleanliness expected in a post-covid society. It is key that the borough council leads
by example in providing facilities for the local population and visitors who wish to visit
the beach. The beach and the walking and outdoor space it provides is a key health
benefit, encompassing physical exercise as well as benefits in mental health from being
outside. The council wishes to encourage outdoor exercise and the use of our local
beaches. We therefore need to provide appropriate toilet facilities to encourage return
visitors and ensure they feel welcome and their needs are met by the local facilities.
Local Support
The ward councillor, Parish Council, the land owner (Ken Hill Estate) and the public fully
support the provision of new toilet facilities in Heacham. It is acknowledged the existing
facilities are no longer fit for purpose.
Meeting Local Plan
Heacham is currently consulting on it's own Neighbourhood Plan. An excerpt from this
plan is detailed below:
According to the 2011 census data, Heacham has approximately 1,750 static holiday
caravan spaces, the majority of which are within caravan parks situated on the coast.
Most of the caravans are privately owned, with only the Heacham Beach Caravan Park
having any significant number of caravans to hire.
Caravan holidays have been part of Heacham since the early 1930s. The caravan parks
and associated businesses are major employers in the village and make a significant
contribution both through business rates and income to the area from caravan owners
and holidaymakers.
This demonstrates how important the beaches are to both holidaymakers and the local
population. People enjoy their time at the beach, therefore it is vital that adequate
facilities are there to ensure they continue to return. This, in turn, helps the village
prosper by providing employment and spend within the local economy.
Supporting Information
The existing toilet block at Heacham Beach is no longer fit for purpose. It cannot provide
a safe and sanitary service in a post-covid environment. A lack of user confidence in the
facilities could impact on holiday makers and residents of the borough who frequent the
beach. Visitors bring money into the local economy and the caravan park provides
employment opportunities to local residents.

Amount of CIL funding requested: £20,000

121

Scoring Criteria

% Matched/Notes

Score

Evidence of Need
No new dwellings identified in the BCKLWN Local Plan: 66 identified in current Local 2
Plan Evidence of local people support your project?
Local Land Owner - evidence 1
of funding
How does the project contribute to the delivery of the
1
Neighbourhood Plan. No
objectives and policies of the BCKLWN Local Plan?
evidence to support Local
Plan Objectives submitted

Evidence of stakeholder support
Details of support for the project from other stakeholders or
organisations

BCKLWN Project

1

Finance and Deliverability
Amount of funding committed to the project by applying
organization own funding

Other funding will be from the 0
council's capital programme.

Amount of funding committed to the project by applying Parish £5,000 payable at £250 pa for 5
funds
the expected life of the toilets

– 25%
Details of other match funding secured

Kenhill estate have committed 5
£25,000 (payable at £1,000
per annum over 25 years) –
100%

Approximate start and finish dates of the project. (must be
deliverable within 1-5 years of application)

0 - 6mths
Total Score:

BC Officer Recommendation

Made by:CIL Officer_ Amanda Driver

Recommendation:

Approval

Reason for Recommendation:

Economic Development - to support tourism

CIL Spending Panel Review
Spending Panel Recommendation/Comments

BCKLWN Management Team Decision
Decision Approved/Refused:

Reason for Refusal (if applicable):

Service Manager/Exec Director Sign off
Signature:

Date:

122

5
20/45
Dated: 25 May 2020

Ref 45 Barroway Drove - Foot Path Extension
Applicant

Stow Bardolph Parish Council

Description

Submitted as Strategic Project – Does not meet criteria
To extend the only existing foot path in Barroway Drove in order to:
• Increase residents’ safety (both real and perceived)
• Encourage residents’ participation in village life, thus contributing to physical and
mental wellbeing
• Support the recent growth and development in this small, rural hamlet
Supporting Information Submitted: Footpath Details/Project Plan

Additional
Information

Evidence of Need
No evidence as submitted as Strategic Project
Local Support
No evidence as submitted as Strategic Project
Meeting Local Plan
No evidence as submitted as Strategic Project
Supporting Information
We have received a total of £4096.20 of CIL funding directly from development in the
parish (3415.72 from development in Barroway Drove) which will be used for this
project.
Parish Partnership funding may also be available to part fund this project and is
something we will explore, depending on the outcome of this application.

Amount of CIL funding requested: £50,000
Scoring Criteria

% Matched/Notes

Score

Evidence of Need
No new dwellings identified in the BCKLWN Local Plan: Although Barroway Drove is a 2
smaller village/hamlet with no
identified sites within the
Local Plan, there has been
significant infill development
within this parish with no
infrastructure support
Evidence of local people support your project?
0
0
How does the project contribute to the delivery of the
objectives and policies of the BCKLWN Local Plan?

0

2

Evidence of stakeholder support
Details of support for the project from other stakeholders or
organisations

No evidence as submitted as 1
Strategic Project. Parish
Council project

Finance and Deliverability
£5,000 – 2%

1

Amount of funding committed to the project by applying Parish £4,096 – 8%
CIL funds

1

Details of other match funding secured

0
5

Amount of funding committed to the project by applying
organization own funding (e.g. Parish precept).

Approximate start and finish dates of the project. (must be
deliverable within 1-5 years of application)

0
0 - 6mnths
Total Score:

123

12/45

BC Officer Recommendation

Made by:CIL Officer_ Amanda Driver

Recommendation:

Approval as Community Project

Reason for Recommendation:

Economic Development - to support development infrastructure

CIL Spending Panel Review
Spending Panel Recommendation/Comments

BCKLWN Management Team Decision
Decision Approved/Refused:

Reason for Refusal (if applicable):

Service Manager/Exec Director Sign off
Signature:

Date:

124

Dated: 25 May 2020

Ref 52 Upwell Hall Environmental Transformation
Applicant

Upwell Parish Council

Description

Submitted as Strategic Project does not meet criteria - amended to Community
Project
Upwell Hall is a focal point at the centre of the village of Upwell. It was built in 1868 after
public subscription to fund the build and donation of the land on which to build it. In the
153 years of its life it has been extended and has had cosmetic work done to it but the
structure is still 19th century. As such it is very poorly insulated, the heating system is
incredibly inefficient, the wiring is very old. The hall was purchased in 1996 by the parish
council as the previous owner had closed it. Since then it has been run by a team of
volunteers on behalf of the council. Given the carbon emissions level the UK has signed
up to in accordance with the Paris Climate Agreement and in conjunction with the
BCKLWN Climate Change Policy we wish to transform the energy profile of the hall. We
wish to install solar panels to generate our own electricity, replace the heating system
with an environmentally friendly air to air system and the thoroughly insulate the building
to a high standard.

Supporting Information Submitted:
x Project Plan
x Proposed Layout Drawing
x Supporting Photos
Additional
Match Funding Details
Information
We are applying to WREN for support
Supporting Information
The hall is owned by the parish council and as a result is barred from applying to the
vast majority of funding sources for this type of project. The parish council has
committed to funding any shortfall between the grants obtained and the cost of the
project. The CIl money is aimed at supporting communities and this community has had
very little financial support over the years. this project will help the Borough Council in its
efforts to reduce greenhouse gas emissions from the borough and can act as an
exemplar on how old buildings can be made more energy efficient.
Amount of CIL funding requested: £50,000
Scoring Criteria
% Matched/Notes
Score

Evidence of Need
No new dwellings identified in the BCKLWN Local Plan:

Evidence of local people support your project?
How does the project contribute to the delivery of the
objectives and policies of the BCKLWN Local Plan?

80 dwellings within 6 sites, 2
as identified in current
Local Plan
1
No evidence, Parish
Project
DM9,DM19,DM20,G104
4

Evidence of stakeholder support
Details of support for the project from other stakeholders or
organisations

Parish Project

1

£50,000 – 100%

5

Finance and Deliverability
Amount of funding committed to the project by applying
organization own funding (e.g. Parish precept).

Amount of funding committed to the project by applying Parish CIL 0
funds

1

Details of other match funding secured

0

0

125

Approximate start and finish dates of the project. (must be
deliverable within 1-5 years of application)

6 - 9months
Total Score:

4
18/45

BC Officer Recommendation

Made by:CIL Officer_ Amanda Driver

Recommendation:

Approval as a Community Project

Reason for Recommendation:

Community Facility/Economic Development to support infrastructure

CIL Spending Panel Review
Spending Panel Recommendation/Comments

BCKLWN Management Team Decision
Decision Approved/Refused:

Reason for Refusal (if applicable):

Service Manager/Exec Director Sign off
Signature:

Date:

126

Dated: 25 May 2020

127

128

Ref 55 West Winch Skatepark
Applicant

West Winch Parish Council

Description

We are seeking funding for a new Skatepark for our expanding population.
This is one strand of the Parish Council 2 strand project to provide new play equipment
and a new Skatepark.
Our play area with play equipment and Skatepark is in the heart of our village and will
remain a central point for the new housing in the central growth area as it will be within
easy walking or cycling distance for the majority of the population.
It is publicly accessible at all times.
West Winch is a parish in rural West Norfolk. In our area the following identifiable factors
are significantly worse than the East of England average: Significant levels of rural
deprivation, a lower average income, higher unemployment and work limiting disability rate.
It has poor access to public services and transport.
The current play equipment and skate park are located next to each other on land
owned by the Parish council.
They are next to the William Burt Social Club the Village Hall and the nursery on the edge
of the playing field. All popular facilities -their visitors make use of the skatepark. It has
been in place for many years, well loved, well used and now well worn. It is no longer fit for
purpose and will not meet the needs of the expanding population proposed by BCKLWN.
The current skate park is a metal and board construction which requires constant
maintenance. It is often closed for repairs and presents a danger as the young people
manage to scale any barrier and use it anyway.
A recent RoSPA report pointed out many problems. Our village handyman is talented, but
he is not a miracle worker and can no longer maintain the equipment to the required
standard.
The skatepark has been quoted at £50,000
We are seeking capital funding for the skatepark element of the project to enable us to
remove our worn out and dangerous skatepark and build one more suitable for the future
needs of the local population.
(We hope to obtain other funding for the play equipment)
Aiming to promote the mental and physical health and well-being of all our children and
young people, we wish to encourage an increase in outdoor physical activity for all.
By undertaking both strands together, prospective suppliers have indicated that they
could work together reducing costs. E.g. removal of old matting and equipment,
groundwork and safety fencing would all be done at one time with one contractor.
Also it is important to minimise disruption. As the two facilities are next to each other,
work on one will inevitably disrupt the other.
SKATEPARK
We aim to replace the present dilapidated skate park with a modern concrete ramp style
with some technical attributes to accommodate scooters and bikes as well as skateboards.
We intend to achieve an engaging and aesthetically pleasing, environmentally sustainable
design, which, together with the play equipment offers a cohesive sense of place.
In practical terms:All current equipment will be removed. The groundworks will be
undertaken.
The new skate/scooter ramp and play equipment will be installed extending the area of
the current play space.We already have quotes for supply of the play equipment and the
Skatepark. All suppliers are aware that we are reliant on grant funding to go ahead.
All suppliers are aware of the need for the playpark and Skatepark to be constructed at the
same time with the aim of minimising costs and disruption.

129

Additional
Information

Environment:
All suppliers are aware of West Winch Parish Council Environmental and Sustainability
policy and the Parish Council requires them to adhere to it.
Local input:
By listening to local people we aim to provide a facility that will be well used. As we have
to replace the equipment now, we want to ensure that it will provide great play
opportunities for young people into the future. Once we know we have funding in place
we will ask the suppliers to meet with our local project group and young people to refine
the details.
Sustainability:
We will purchase from an established supplier with the expectation of many years of life
for the Skatepark.
We have made provision for future maintenance of new equipment.
West Winch Parish Council employ a village handy person responsible for general
maintenance and repairs and also a grounds person responsible for general tidiness
and litter picking. Between them they inspect the play equipment daily. Repairs are
carried out promptly.
All our play equipment has an annual RoSPA report.
Disability and Accessibility:
All suppliers are aware of the need to consider disability and accessibility.
We have undertaken a disability and access audit.
The site in the centre of the village is easily accessible to all by walking or cycling.
It is next to a car park. The access to the site is level with tarmac paths from the
pavement and car park. As a rural village there is poor public transport provision.
The current provision for children with disabilities is poor in terms of suitability of our
play equipment.
We have discussed with potential providers the necessity for providing new facilities
which are easily accessed by all children and young people.
Consideration will be given to accessibility and visibility of routes through the skatepark,
easy to navigate, e.g. colour coding for different sections etc.
We also will ensure ease of access for parents/carers with disabilities with adequate
seating and visibility of the area.
Signage will also be accessible.
Focus on community health:
The area will give families a focus for healthy outdoor play.
We have listened to our young people who, in particular have told us they would like
some more adventurous equipment, better skatepark. We anticipate that older children
will participate more.
With the change in emphasis for scooter users as requested in the survey, the move
towards a more contemporary type of concrete runway we expect the use of the
skatepark to increase hugely and be more inclusive.
AIMS:
The project will;Contribute towards a stronger community, sustaining village life and
community relations. Families will feel less need to go elsewhere with their children to
provide exercise and entertainment.
Help local children and young people develop both physically and mentally making
new friends, developing social and practical skills, improving relationships and their
confidence
Encourage local people to get outdoors with their children, improving health, wellbeing
and thereby reducing inactivity and obesity
Be more accessible to children with extra needs.

130

Be more suitable for increased use with new families with the advent of the new
housing.
By having a facility which is accessible to all, fun and engaging and in good repair the
children and young people will be encouraged to use the facility.
It will be a great meeting place for families encouraging social cohesion.
Having local people involved with the project is creating a sense of ownership in the
community.
The new facility will be visually more attractive and provide a safer and better play
experience.
The 20% of survey respondents who indicated that the present play space is poor or
unusable should feel confident that the new equipment is safe.
It is difficult in the year of Covid to say how well used the current equipment is.
However, in normal times the equipment is well used when in good repair. We have an
estimated 480 children and young people resident in the village and that number will
increase as development takes place.
It is particularly popular after school with parents and children calling on their way home.
This encourages parents/carers to walk to pick children up form school, eliminating
unnecessary car journeys.
The equipment will be more accessible and for a wider age range then present.
As the proposed development goes ahead there will be new families in the area so we
need a facility which is large and robust enough to provide fun and exercise far into the
future.
Supporting Information Submitted:
x Letters of Support:
o Cllr Kemp/Cllr Nash
o Primary & Nursery Schools
o Social Club
o Village Hall
o Beavers/Scouts
x Play Facility Prospectus/Photographs/Drawings & Plans
Amount of CIL funding requested: £50,000
Scoring Criteria
% Matched/Notes

Score

Evidence of Need
No new dwellings identified in the BCKLWN Local Plan: At least 1,600

5

Evidence of local people support your project?

5

Letters of support: BC Cllr/County Cllr
Cllrs/Primary
School/Beavers/Nursery/Social
Club/Village Hall. Community
Fundraising & FCC grants applied for
As detailed in the submission

10

PC Project/Service Provider Support

2

Amount of funding committed to the project by applying
organization own funding (e.g. Parish precept).

£5,000 – 2.5%

1

Amount of funding committed to the project by applying
Parish CIL funds

0

0

Details of other match funding secured

£10,000 FCC communities grant. –
5%

2

How does the project contribute to the delivery of the
objectives and policies of the BCKLWN Local Plan?

Evidence of stakeholder support
Details of support for the project from other stakeholders
or organisations

Finance and Deliverability

131

Approximate start and finish dates of the project. (must be
deliverable within 1-5 years of application)

Summer - Autumn 2021
Total Score:

5
30/45

BC Officer Recommendation

Made by:CIL Officer_ Amanda Driver

Recommendation:

Approval

Reason for Recommendation:

Major Area of Growth - Economic Development. Public Open Space
facility to attract visitors.

CIL Spending Panel Review
Spending Panel Recommendation/Comments

BCKLWN Management Team Decision
Decision Approved/Refused:

Reason for Refusal (if applicable):

Service Manager/Exec Director Sign off
Signature:

Date:

132

Dated: 25 May 2020

133

134

135

'

'

·,
•

136

137

Ref 56 Tilney All Saints - Millennium Green Play Area
Applicant

Tilney All Saints Parish Council

Description

To create new children's play area with five pieces of play equipment, including
equipment which would be inclusive for disabled users, plus seating, safety surfaces
and fencing.
We are a small rural village with few facilities.
The nearest similar play equipment is located six miles away, so only accessible by car.
In developing the Neighbourhood Plan the community identified a gap in social
infrastructure within the Parish as there is no real provision for children's play.
The play area would allow local children to enjoy outdoor play, in a safe area, with all
the physical and mental health wellbeing this provides, especially after the Covid 19
lockdowns and restrictions, with the need to get children active again.
Play area to be located next to the village primary school so would provide area for
children and their families to socialise after school. (Project is supported by the school)
To support the sustainability and growth of the village there is a need to attract young
families into the village to mitigate our older demographic and sustain/increase the
number on role at the village primary school, which one of the few facilities in the parish.
If the primary school were to close, as so many small rural schools are. (Sedgeford
Primary July 2020 and Wormegay Primary in consultation to do so at the moment are
just two examples of this) there would be a loss of local jobs and an increase to vehicle
use as residents would have to drive to take their children to school. This could also
make the village less attractive to people looking to move into the area.
This project was started back in 2015 and the Parish Council has been earmarking
funding from our Precept and submitting funding applications for the project to try and
get it to completion.
Fund raising plans for last year and this year have had to be put on hold due to the
Covid 19 pandemic.
With limited funding opportunities available to Parish Councils and applications currently
focused on Covid 19 recovery projects, we would hope projects like ours for small rural
communities will be considered
Supporting Information Submitted:Examples of Equipment

Additional
Information

Evidence of Need
Requests from residents
Parish Plan Survey March 2014
Residents Association began project in 2015
Survey June 2016
Neighbourhood Plan Consultation exercise 2017 (70% of people responded there were
not enough facilities for children in the Parish)
Neighbourhood Plan Consultation Survey September 2016 and February 2019

138

BCKLWN Local Plan
Objective 10: All people are active and healthy Project provides play equipment for
children to encourage physical activity. Adults walk to facilities with their children rather
than drive to access similar equipment.
Objective 12: Project will enhance and increase quality of village green
Transport: Residents will be less reliant on cars to access places and services.as play
facilities will be within walking distance.
Rural Areas 28: Will provide for social needs of residents with an attractive safe place
for families and friends to meet within the village
Project will help attract younger families into the village and change the existing older
demographic to sustain vitality of the parish and in turn the number on roll at the village
primary school (Oftsed rated Good) as would not wish for the school to close like so
many other small rural schools across Norfolk.
Tilney All Saints Neighbourhood Plan
Help sustain vitality of the parish by attracting younger families to the village and
To maintain and support important Community Assets- Millennium Green is a
designated Local Green Space.
Amount of CIL funding requested: £36,000
Scoring Criteria

% Matched/Notes

Score

Evidence of Need
No new dwellings identified in the BCKLWN Local
Plan:

Rural Village with allocation of 5 1
dwellings
Letters and emails from residents 5
Fully supported by the Parish
Council
Letter of support from the village
primary school
Responses to surveys and
Neighbourhood Plan consultations

Evidence of local people support your project?

How does the project contribute to the delivery of the Details in Submission
objectives and policies of the BCKLWN Local Plan?

10

Evidence of stakeholder support
Details of support for the project from other stakeholders Parish Council Project
or organisations

1

Finance and Deliverability
Amount of funding committed to the project by applying
organization own funding (e.g. Parish precept).

£10,000 = 28%

5

Amount of funding committed to the project by applying
Parish CIL funds

0

1

Details of other match funding secured

£2,000 Donation from local Tilney 1
Charities – 6%Commission

Approximate start and finish dates of the project. (must be
deliverable within 1-5 years of application)

Total Score:

139

24/45

BC Officer Recommendation
Recommendation:

Made by:CIL Officer_ Amanda Driver
No Recommendation

Reason for Recommendation:

BC Officer unsure if project meets pre-application criteria under
Environment, as not linked to Climate Change
Could Allocate £10,000 under Local Project

CIL Spending Panel Review
Spending Panel Recommendation/Comments

BCKLWN Management Team Decision
Decision Approved/Refused:

Reason for Refusal (if applicable):

Service Manager/Exec Director Sign off
Signature:

Date:

140

Dated: 25 May 2020

, Ref 64 – Clenchwarton Pre-School - Project Panda

Applicant

Clenchwarton Pre-School

Description

Does not meet pre-application criteria
The project is to implement changes that are recommended by Ofsted to improve
continuous provision by providing the same areas outside as inside, as well as support a
child’s physical development. With this, we could then offer better facilities and
additional services, all of which will allow us to reach our goal of becoming a permanent
pre-school setting. With the Borough Council local plan and data from a recent survey,
evidence has shown that this is a much-needed community resource.

Additional
Information

Supporting Information Submitted:
x Business Plan
x Project Brief
x PC Letter of Support
Evidence of Need
In a current survey carried out, over 63% of those responded would like “Late Opening”
for Clenchwarton preschool, which is needed for job retention and those returning to
work, especially during the current pandemic and lock downs. However over 33%
surveyed felt a barrier in bringing their children to the Pre-School was that it has a
“Limited Range of Equipment”.
Meeting Local Plan
According to the Office for National Statistics (ONS) 2018 the population in King's Lynn
& West Norfolk is projected to increase by 2.34% by 2028. Norfolk is considered a major
economic growth area with an expected 2,330 new dwellings in the King’s Lynn & West
Norfolk area. These are detailed in NCC’s 2020 Schools Local Growth and Investment
Plan (SLGIP). If Clenchwarton takes up just 1% of these dwellings, there could be 23
new homes, which may attract a need for childcare provision
Aims and Objectives.
Clenchwarton Preschool aims to provide high quality, affordable, sessional care for
children in non-domestic premises, in and around the community of Clenchwarton .
Its objectives are to provide children between the ages of 2 and 5 with the ability to
interact with other children and adults, to develop social skills that aid transition to
school life and provide a stimulating environment within which children can learn, in line
with the Early Years Foundation Stage (“EYFS”). Children are able to develop at their
own pace, both physically and creatively in a warm, friendly atmosphere.
We aim, through our links to the village primary school, to provide a seamless transition
for the children from the preschool to when they start mainstream education.
We also aim to provide ongoing training for the staff, in accordance with the EYFS.
The pre-school accepts children with special educational needs and ensures that staff
training is in place to support them.

Amount of CIL funding requested: £19,281
Scoring Criteria

% Matched/Notes

Score

No new dwellings identified in the BCKLWN Local Plan:

Key Rural Service Area –
Allocation of 50 New
Dwellings

2

Evidence of local people support your project?

No evidence submitted on 0
application form
No evidence submitted on 0
application form

Evidence of Need

How does the project contribute to the delivery of the
objectives and policies of the BCKLWN Local Plan?

Evidence of stakeholder support

141

Details of support for the project from other stakeholders or
organisations

No evidence submitted on 0
application form

Finance and Deliverability
0

0

Amount of funding committed to the project by applying Parish CIL 0
funds

1

Details of other match funding secured

3,085 – 16%

4

Approximate start and finish dates of the project. (must be
deliverable within 1-5 years of application)

6 Months

5

Amount of funding committed to the project by applying
organization own funding (e.g. Parish precept).

Total Score:

7/15 as Local Project or 12/45 as Community Project

BC Officer Recommendation

Made by:CIL Officer_ Amanda Driver

Recommendation:

Refusal as Community Project
Allocation of £10,000 as Local Project

Reason for Recommendation:

Registered Charity - not for profit organisation.

Dated: 25 May 2020

Refusal as Community Project – Does not meet preapplication criteria
Allocate £10,000 as Local project - community facility.

CIL Spending Panel Review
Spending Panel Recommendation/Comments

BCKLWN Management Team Decision
Decision Approved/Refused:

Reason for Refusal (if applicable):

Service Manager/Exec Director Sign off
Signature:

Date:

142

Appendix 2 – Existing Site

143

Appendix 3 - Site Plan

144

Strategic Projects
Ref No

Project Description

32

Alive Leisure - New Lynnsport 3G and Coaching Academy

Strategic Project Application Criteria – FY 20/21
As detailed in the CIL Governance Document FY20/21, the project must meet the following criteria:
x
x
x

Is this project necessary to support infrastructure for development?
Is the total cost of the project over 50k?
Has match funding and financial commitment been secured?

Current Scope for funding:
o
o
o

Education related to employment (post 18 college based education)
Transport, linked to Lynn Transport Plan
Environment – green areas linked to Climate Change Policy

145

Ref 32 New Lynnsport 3G and Coaching Academy
Applicant

Alive West Norfolk

Description

Sport England and the Football Association have identified insufficient artificial pitches in
West Norfolk, the only one being located at Lynnsport and it is deemed there should be
at least 3.5 3G pitches in West Norfolk to meet the population and affiliated football
teams needs. This is consistent with the current 3G pitch usage which has 96%
utilisation at peak times. Alongside this there is a shortage of sports coaches and
particularly higher level coaches at level 3 or higher in the borough which means we
cannot fulfil the demand in terms of school programmes, clubs and participation
sessions. It is proposed to develop a new additional 3G pitch on the River Lane playing
fields at Lynnsport to alleviate the pressure on the current 3G and this will provide time
for coach education sessions. We will work in partnership with The College of West
Anglia, University Centre West Anglia and Anglia Ruskin University to develop a
Coaching Academy starting with developing young leaders at school who progress to
CWA and then undertake work placements and/or apprenticeships with Alive
progressing to higher level apprenticeships or higher education within West Norfolk so
we do not lose talent and suffer staff turnover when young people have to leave for
university.
Supporting Information Submitted: Site Plan

Additional
Information

There is significant wider reach of this programme enhancing the physical and mental
wellbeing of residents through schools programmes, community programmes,
participation programmes and events. It will help inspire a generation of young people
improving aspirations and attainment and providing a skilled workforce to enhance
wellbeing in West Norfolk. Staff will be based at the Dutton Pavilion to manage the new
development which will also aid in managing the open space at River Lane and reducing
anti-social behaviour.

Amount of CIL funding requested:
Total cost of project

£250,000.00
£910,000

Total match funding secured

The Football Foundation have confirmed they will fund 75%
(£660,000) of this project as a priority project in an area of high
deprivation in West Norfolk.

BC Officer Recommendation

Made by:CIL Officer_ Amanda Driver

Dated: 25 May 2020

Summary of Project/Recommendation to Management Team:
CWA Education Opportunities
Meets current scope – Y
Match Funded? Y
Development in the Area – Y.
Current No proposed Houses relating to the project – Local Plan Strategic Allocations 200+
Houses
Local Plan: CS14/DM9 Community Facilities

146

Ward/Portfolio Cllr Comments
Kings Lynn Ward North Lynn: Cllrs B Jones
Portfolio Holders:

CIL Spending Panel Comments

Management Team Comments: Coordinate with Funding Streams

Cabinet Decision
Decision
Approved/Refused:

Reason for Refusal (if applicable):

Cabinet Member sign off
Signature:

Date:

BC Officer Actions
Result: Refusal/Approval:
Date Applicant Contacted with result:
Total CIL Fund Allocated £
Details of Project Manager
Date Fund Transfer Raised & sent to Accountancy

Electric Documentation to record:
Timetable of Fund Allocations:

147

Date requested

Amount £

Allocated for

148

Actioned by

·

.

149

